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Town or CUMBERLAND, Mame
290 Tuttle Road
Cumberland Center, Maine 04021-9321

Telephone (207) 829-5559 o Fax (207) 829-2214

December 16, 2010

To the Citizens of the Town of Cumberland:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Town of Cumberland for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures rests with the Town. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to
present fairly the financial position and resulis of operations of the Town on a government-wide and
fund basis. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Town's
financial activities have been inciuded.

This report includes all funds of the Town, as well as the entity-wide financial statements required by
GASB Statement No. 34 and required supplementary information. The Town provides a full range of
services. These services include police, ambulance and fire proteciion; sanitation services; the
construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and infrastructure; harbor control and emergency
preparedness; municipal planning and code enforcement; human services; senior housing; wastewater
system; recreational activities (including a golf course) and cultural events. Other than these general
government activities, it has been determined that the Town is not financially accountable for any other
entity, board or commission.

GASB requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter -
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
Town’s MD&A can be found immediately following the independent auditor’s report.

Economic Condition and Qutlook

The town remained in a self-described “lock down” mode in FY 2009-10 as the nation weathered the
worst recession in many years. The municipal expense budget was essentially flat compared to the prior
year, and the next year will be flat as well. The 2010-11 budget was built on the assumption the current
state of the economy would not change much either way. It would not get worse, but it would not
improve noticeably either.

However, things were not at all quiet. Fiscal year 2009-10 will most likely be remembered for two
events. The first item was the Town Council decision to make drainage improvements and road repairs
along Route 88, which runs north to south along the Cumberland Foreside. The details of the project are
discussed in Major Initiatives below.

The second item was the abandonment of the regional rescue program run in conjunction with the
neighboring towns of Yarmouth and Falmouth, and the resuliing merger of the Fire and Rescue
departments.



Going into FY 09-10, the primary concerns with the merger of Fire and Rescue were not as much
financial as they were practical. The big concern was that with the merger, the residents of the town
would continue to enjoy the same high levei of Rescue service as they had in the past. With one yearin
the books, we can declare this element a success. The transition was mostly seamless, and there has
heen no decline in service.

There was little doubt that the merger would prove a money saver, and this held true. The combined
expenses minus revenues for Fire & Rescue in FY 08-09 were $655,455, as opposed to $558,086 the
following year. This gap will shrink in the coming years as grants expire, but much of the improvement
will remain.

As with prior years, the Town of Cumberland is still a predominantly a residential community with a
small commercial secior concentrated in pockets along the major corridors - Rt. 100, Rt. 9, and Rt. 1.
Approximately 3% of the tax base is commercial and industrial, 5% is seasonal property, and the
remainder is residential (these figures include vacant parceis as well as developed parcels). This
translates to a very stable source of property tax revenues. Of the vacant parcels in Town,
. approximately 80% are zoned for residential use, with the remaining 20% being zoned for commercial
and industrial uses, thus ensuring the growth pattern of residence predominance with an opportunity to
expand the commercial tax base to a small degree.

The rate of tax collection continued to be strong; at 98.03% for last year and 98.37% for this year. The
Town's legal debt margin is set by State law at 15% of estimated actual valuation. Currently, the Town's
outstanding indebtedness is at roughly 1.5% of the State's equalized valuation.

With the sharp downturn in the real estate market, reliabie home sales data has become increasingly
difficult to find. After many years of using GPCOG as a source, they are no longer providing this data.
Using information gathered from the Maine Home Sales Connection, the median home sales price in
Cumberland decreased 19.3% from 2008 to 2009 to $287,000. These statistics suggest that uniike in the
past, Cumberland is no longer insulated from the overail downturn in property values. However, this is
a new source, and no statistics are available through June 30™.

The Town of Cumberland's budget {including MSAD #51) for 2010 showed an increase of 3% from 2009.
The Town rate increased from $3.96 in 2009 to $4.01 in 2010, the School increased from $9.50 in 2009
to $9.98, and the County increased from constant at $.54 to $.56. The overall rate increased from
$14.00 to 514.55, To put these all in relative terms, the overall rate increased 4%, while the town rate
increased 1%, the school 5%, and the county 4%.

The unemploymant rate for the Town of Cumberland as of April 2010 was 5.2% as compared to the
state as a whole at 8.4%. This shows a much better than average unemployment rate and thus a better
than average economic outlook.

Major initiatives

The major initiatives for the Town in 2009-10 included:

e Completion of additional waterlines and a turning lane along Route 100, as well as
infrastructure improvements at Castlerock Business Park. These projects were financed by a
2008 bond.

@ The bulk of the worl on the reconstruction and addition of waterlines to Range Road was
completed during the year. The final coat of pavement should be laid down in the spring of
2011.

o Repaving and road improvements in the Bea & Karole Lane neighborhoods were completed, as
well as the extension of sidewalks along the town Senior Housing units.
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® The Public Works department purchased a new Komatsu 6-wheeled loader for a cost of
$97,500.
¢ The town replaced the roof of the Town Hall at a cost of $74,800.

As of June 30, 2010, the major projects along Range Road and Route 88 were all still in progress. No
other significant road improvements were completed during the year.

Current and New Initiatives

The Town’s primary capital expenditure for 2011 will be a major construction project along Route 28.
This is really three projects in one, as it will involve drainage improvements along the road itself and the
connecting roads, paved shoulders and better sightlines on the road, and a repaving of the surface and
reconstruction along certain portions of the road. While the road itself was not in great condition, the
larger issue was drainage. Ponding of water and street flooding occurred on a regular basis, and caused
negative impacts to many of the homes along the corridor. Runoff from the area also had an adverse
impact on the clam flats. The new drainage is expected to help with water quality improvement.

The decision to move forward with this project proved to be a point of conflict among residents. After
the Town Council voted for the project, and referendum petition was successful circulated, and a vote
was held in March of 2010. The project very narrowly passed, and construction began in June 2010.
The bulk of the work will be completed in FY 2011, but the project will not be fully complete until FY
2012. $4.1 Million was bonded in the spring of 2010. Because these were “Build America” bonds, a
component of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, they carried a very low average interest
rate of roughly 2.9%.

For much of the past decade, the town has focused on improving infrastructure, in particular the
infrastructure along designated commercial areas. With the completion of the Route 100 and Range
Road waterlines, this objective is nearly complete. Now that the infrastructure for growth is in place,
the town has shifted its efforts to actively promoting this growth. The town hired an Economic
Development Director, and also created the Cumberiand Maine Business Association. Already there is
one exciting new business in place. For the first time in many years, the town now has a bank within
town limits, located right along Main Street. It is hoped that the next few years there will be many more
of these new businesses to discuss.

The Five Year Capital Improvement Plan includes a commitment to maintain the infrastructure, to
continue to purchase capital equipment, to guarantee reliability and to maintain and upgrade the
Town'’s facilities. The intent is to provide quality services to the residents and to ensure that these
services will continue in the future without major increases in property taxes.

Financial Information

internal Controfs. Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
controls designed to ensure that the assets of the Town are protected from loss, theft or misuse and fo
ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal controls are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: {1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived;
and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.




The audit was performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. As required by these standards, an understanding of the design of
relevant policies and procedures, and a determination whether the policies and procedures had been
placed in operation and control risk is assessed. As a resuli of the level of control risk, tests of controls
are performed to determine adequacy of the internal control structure. Additionally, tests are
performed to determine the Town's compliance with certain laws, regulations, contracts and grants.
The results of these tests indicated the Town had no instances of materfal weaknesses in internal
control structure and no violations of applicable laws and regulations tested. The report on compliance
and on internal control over financial reporting has been issued under separate cover entitled "Reports
Required by Government Auditing Standards" dated December 8, 2010 and is available at the Finance
Office at the Town Office.

Budgeting Controls. In addition, the Town maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these
budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated
budget approved by the Town Council. Activities of the General Fund are included in the annual
appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control {that is, the level at which expenditures cannot
legally exceed the appropriated amount) is the Department. Special Revenue and Enterprise Funds do
not have legally adopted budgets.

Budgets are legally adopted by the Town Council through the passage of an appropriations order, As
demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the
government continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

General Fund Balance. The overall General Fund balance increased by $5,030, which represents a
change of .3%. The overall General Fund balance would have been higher, but the majority of the

potential increase was instead used to offset certain funds that had deficit balances.

Enterprise Operations. The Town's enterprise operations are comprised of three separate and distinct
activities: Senior Housing, Sewer system, and Val Halla golf course & recreation center.

The changes in net assets for 2010 are listed below:

Senior Housing S 11,743
Sewer System (748)
Val Halla {180,517)

The change in net assets for Senior Housing occurred because operating profits were greater than
accumulated depreciation. While the operating profits and accumuiated depreciation are similar to
prior years, the big change was the increase in principal payments in the past few years. After many
years of no or very small principal payments, this fund has now reached the point where it is actually
paying down a significant portion of its debt each year, and this is causing a corresponding decrease in
interest paid.

The smali decrease in net assets for the sewer fund is the result of operational profits for the year offset
by accumulated depreciation. The good news from this fund is that the interfund loans payable o the
General Fund decreased from $296,686 to $226,985 and should continue to decrease in the coming
years.



Val Haila showed a decrease of 5188,219. This decrease is the result of operating losses and
accumulated depreciation. These were partially offset by an increase to assets from the cart paths. Val
Halla’s interfund loans payable increased to $1,658,617. This line has risen considerably in recent years,
and has become a major drain on cash balances for the town as a whole. When the banquet center is
sold to the Maine State Golf Asscciation on January 1, 2012, the proceeds from the sale will go towards
reducing this number considerably.

Debt Administration. As of June 30, 2010, the Town’s Governmental Activities had a total of
$17,936,801 of outstanding general obligation debt and capital leases. This amount is $3,340,752 more
than 2009, an increase of 23%. This increase is due to the addition of a $4.1 million bond in May 2010,
offset by $797,063 in principal payments. The total outstanding debt of the enterprise funds is
$1,240,243, down $110,000 from the prior year. The Town currently has an AA- rating from with
Standard and Poor’s on its general obligation bond issues. State statutes provide for an overall debt
limit for the Town of 15% of state equalized valuation of real and personal property. As of June 30,
2010, the Town's outstanding indebtedness is roughly 1.5% of the State's equalized vaiuation.

Financiaf Policies. During the spirited debate that occurred last year over the Bonding for Route 88 and
the FY 10-11 budget, one of the most frequently discussed topics was the issue of the town’s debt.
Much was made of the fact that the overall bonded indebtedness has increased tremendously in the
past decade.

The recent years of bond issuances were part of a long-term strategy to improve the roadways and
waterlines of the town in order fo encourage commercial growth in designated areas along Routes 1 and
100, and this strategy was also accelerated and augmented by recent economic events. The recent
economic downturn created a climate of low interest rates and raw material costs, and extremely
aggressive bidding on all construction projects. The Town of Cumberland took advantage of these
conditions by stepping up the timelines on many outstanding projects. This will show in the form of the
large infrastructure additions for this year, a great deal of construction in progress, and further large
additions for the next year.

While the recent rounds of bond issuances have ceriainly driven the towns overall debt to a very high
level, it is also worth noting that unless the town takes on more debt in the next few years, it won’t be
at such a high level for long. Many of the older debt issuances from the 1990’s and the early part of this
decade have now reached the point where large amounts of principal are paid down each year, and all
of the four recent bond issuances either pay fixed principal, carry low interest rates, or both. Thus, the
town is scheduled to pay off nearly $1.2 million in principal in the coming vear, as opposed to roughly
$600,000 in interest payments. In five years, the overall bonded debt will have decreased by 33% from
the current amount. In ten years the debt will have dropped 64%, and Range Road, Route 88, Twin
Brook and the waterlines running through the western half of the town will all still be very early in their
useful life. However, please bear in mind that it is unlikely that the town will completely stop issuing
new debt for the next ten years. The numbers above are intended to show the speed at which the town
is reducing its principal, and not a projected outcome in ten years.

Other Information

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants.
The accounting firm of Runyon Kersteen Quellette was selected. The auditor's report on the basic
financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the
financial section of this report. The auditors were not required to do a single audit under OMB Circular
A-133 as the Town spent less than $500,000 in federal funds.




Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financing Reporting to the Town of Cumberland,
Maine for its fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The Town of Cumberland has received Certificates of
Achievement for the previous years ending December 31, 1993 through 1999, and June 30, 2001
through 2009. We did not submit a report for 2000 as it was a six month budget year. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program
standards. This report must satisfy both generally acceptied accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements. '

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis.was
made possible by the dedicated service of the entire office staff. Each member of the various
departments has our sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this report.

In closing, without the leadership and support of the governing body of the Town, preparation of this
report would not have been possible.

Sincerely, ;
William R. Shane Alex Kimball
Town Manager Finance Director
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Certifled Public Accountants and Business Consultanis

Independent Auditor's Report

Town Council
Town of Cumberland, Maine

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Cumberland, Maine as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the Town's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Town of Cumberland, Maine's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit alsc includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Cumberland, Maine as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 16,
2010 our consideration of the Town of Cumberland, Maine’s internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
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Town Council
Town of Cumberland, Maine

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Cumberland, Maine’s financial statements as a whole. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, exhibits, and
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
exhibits are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Znym,. /éﬁ/&«—' ém/ém

December 16, 2010
South Portland, Maine
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2010

As management of the Town of Cumberland, we offer readers of the Town of Cumberland’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Cumberland for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to consider the information presented in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmitial, on page 1 and the basic financial statements, which
begin on page 30.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Total assets of the Town of Cumberland exceeded its liabilities by $15,526,832. The governmental
activities’ net assets are 512,496,000 while the business-type activities” are $3,030,832.

e The ending fund balance for the Generai Fund was $1,999,806. This is an increase over last year of $5,030,
which is the amount by which revenues exceeded expenditures.

e At the end of the fiscal year, the General Fund unreserved, undesignated fund balance was $1,999,806 or
11% of total General Fund expenditures. This ratic was 4% in 2009, but this large increase is due to a
change in the manner in which fund balances are reported. Moving forward, all of the General Fund
Balance is reported as shown above. If last year's standards were applied to this year, the ratio would have
been 11% as well.

¢ The Business-{ype activities reported unrestricted net assets of $(1,440,318), which represents -79.1% of
operating expenses.

USING THiS ANNUAL REPORT

The Town of Cumberland’s financial statements are comprised of a series of statements. The Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities {pages 31 and 32) provide an overview of the government as a whole and its
activities. The Fund Financial Statements start on page 33. These statements provide a more detailed look at the
governmental funds and the enterprise funds. For a detailed look at revenues and expenses in the Generai Fund,
go to the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance starting on Page 64. The remaining
statements are funds for which the Town acts only as an agent, or trustee for the benefit of others outside the
government.

THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

These statements provide an overview of the government as a whole (similar to private-sector statements). All of
the current year's revenues are taken into account regardless of when cash is received,

The Statement of Net Assets provides a picture of the difference between assets and liabilities (including
infrastructure). This is called Net Assets. The Statement of Activities provides a look at how the net assets have
changed from the prior year to the current year.

in most years, increases ar decreases in net assets can show whether the Town is improving or deteriorating.
Other factors need to be considered, such as changes in the Town’s property tax base and the condition of the
roads, to assess the overall health of the Town.
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In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we separate two kinds of activities:

e Governmental Activities — Most of the Town’s bhasic services are reported here, including the
General Government, Public Safety, Public Works, Health, Sanitation and Welfare, Recreation,
Education and Libraries. Property taxes, intergovernmental revenue (primarily revenues from the
State of Maine and North Yarmouth}, user fees and franchise fees finance most of these activities.

e Business-type Activities — The Town charges a fee to customers to cover all or most of the cost of
certain services it provides. The Town’s Senior Housing, Sewer System, and Val Halla Golf &
Recreation Center are reporied here.

REPORTING THE TOWN'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS
Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide details of the Town’s most significant funds — not the Town as a whole.
These statements begin on page 33. Some funds are required to be established by state law and by bond
covenants. However, management establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for
particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other
money. The Town’s two kinds of funds — governmental and proprietary - use different accounting methods:

e Governmental Funds — Most of the Town’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted te cash. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Town'’s programs.

e Proprietary funds — When the Town charges customers for the services it provides — whether to outside
_customers ar to other units of the Town - these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Assels and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the Town's enterprise funds (a component of proprietary
funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements, but
provide more detail.

THE TOWN AS TRUSTEE
Reporting the Town's Fiduciary Responsibilities

The Town is the trustee, or fiduciary, for trust funds that are set up primarily as scholarships. These assets,
because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. All of the Town's fiduciary activities
are reported in the separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets on pages 40
and 41. We exclude these activities from the Town’s other financial statements because the Town cannof use
these assets o finance its operations. The Town is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds
are used for their intended purposes.
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THE TOWN AS A WHOLE

The foilowing information is a condensed version of the Statement of Net Assets. Qur analysis below focuses on
the net assets of the Town's governmental and business type activities.

Governmenial Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current & other assets S 8,217,576 7,001,038 (1,341,462) (1,283,082} 6,876,114 5,717,956
Capital assets 23,540,224 21,184,817 5,711,393 5,920,973 29,251,617 27,105,790
Total assets 31,757,800 28,185,855 4,369,931 4,637,851 36,127,731 32,823,746
Long-term debt outstanding 17,936,801 14,225,047 1,123,735 1,240,459 19,060,536 15,465,506
Other liabilities 1,324,999 2,183,071 215,364 197,080 1,540,363 2,380,151
Total liabilities 19,261,800 16,408,118 1,339,099 1,437,539 20,600,899 17,845,657
Net assets:
Invested in:
Capital assets 11,713,982 10,583,835 4,471,150 4,570,731 16,185,132 15,154,626
Restricted 6,017,503 880,653 6,017,503 880,653
Unrestricted (5,235,485} 313,189 (1,440,318} (1,370,379} {6,675,803) {1,057,190)
Total net assets S 12,496,000 11,771,737 . 3,030,832 3,200,352 15,526,832 14,978,089

Looking at the net assets and net expenses of Governmental and Business-type activities separately show two very
different pictures.

The net assets of the Town’s governmental activities increased from $11,777,737 to $12,496,000, a net change of
6.1%. Construction resulting from the prior year’s bond issuances caused Capital Assets to increase while
decreasing current assets. However, that decrease in current assets is offset by a new $4.1 million bond issuance
in May of 2010 for drainage and road improvements along Route 88, resulting in an overall increase in Current
Assets. Other factors contributing to the increase included General Fund revenues that exceeded expenses.

Unrestricted net assets can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt
covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements. The unrestricted net asseis of Governmental activities
changed from June 30, 2009 at $313,189 to June 30, 2010 at $(5,235,485). In FY 2008-09, the unspent amount
from the Range Road bond should have been included as a restricted asset, which would have lowered that
unrestricted number considerably.

The unrestricted net assets of our Business-type activities decreased from $(1,370,379) to $(1,440,318).
Operating fosses at Val Halla Golf and Recreation Center decreased unrestricted assets. While Val Halla actually did
perform better than prior years, increases to yearly depreciation and accrued vacation (not counted as a lability in
prior years), minimized this improvement. Net assets for the Senior Housing Fund improved slightly, and net assets
for the Sewer Fund were essentially unchanged.
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Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants & contributions
Capital grants & contributions

General revenues:

Property taxes

Motor vehicle excise tax

Interest and penaities

Homestead exemption

Other State aid

State revenue sharing

Investment earnings

Miscellaneous revenues
Total revenues

Program expenses:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health, sanitation & welfare
Recreation
Education/libraries
Interest on debt
Senior expenses
Sewaer systemn
Wal Halla Golf & Rec. Center
Total expenses

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under} expenditures

Transfers
Change in net assets
Met assets - July £

Net assets - June 30

The overall change in net assets shows an increase from the prior year. Goveramental Activities net asseis rose,
while Business-type Activities decreased. The primary reasons for the changes in net assets from 2009 to 2010 for

governmental activities are:

1. Governmental activities produced a net gain of $718,263, mostly due to the budgeted overlay. This is the
amount by total revenues exceeded expenses. Much of this excess was then used to increase the fund
balance of governmental funds other than the General Fund, such as the Equipmenti Reserves and Road

improvements funds.

2. A portion of the above gain went to the TIF Funds, which built up their fund balances in anticipation of
increased debt service payments exceeding revenues for the coming year. Debt service payments for the
Range Road bond will hit their full level in 2010-11, and will remain constant thereafier. Revenues are

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
§ 1,492,329  § 1,497,049 1,655,325 1,864,524 3,148,254 3,361,573
257,629 351,020 - - 257,629 351,020
170,238 398,369 59,789 - 230,027 398,369
16,651,007 15,940,443 - - 16,651,007 15,940,443
1,372,271 1,348,642 - - 1,372,271 1,348,642
56,008 50,988 - - 56,098 50,988
181,958 161,847 - - 181,958 161,847
- 11,300 - - - 11,300
566,153 702,294 - - 566,153 702,294
16,342 71,519 - - 16,342 71,519
100,622 195,382 - 433,582 100,622 628,964
20,865,247 20,728,853 1,715,114 2,298,106 22,580,361 23,026,959
3,285,510 3,783,966 - - 3,285,510 3,783,566
2,120,117 2,220,293 - - 2,120,117 2,220,293
1,208,065 1,162,830 - - 1,208,065 1,162,830
857,366 834,347 - - 857,366 834,347
50,799 595,531 - - 650,799 595,531
11,368,432 10,801,875 - - 11,368,432 10,801,875
548,993 562,089 - - 648,993 562,089
- - 270,422 244,777 270,422 244,777

- - 831,988 913,642 831,988 913,642

- - 789,926 850,546 789,926 859,546
20,139,282 19,960,931 1,892,336 2,017,965 22,031,618 21,978,896
725,965 767,922 (177,222) 280,141 548,743 1,048,063
(7,702) {934,991} 7,702 934,991 - -
718,263 {167,069} (169,520) 1,215,132 548,743 1,048,063
11,777,737 11,944,806 3,200,352 1,985,220 14,978,089 13,930,026
$ 12,496,000 11,777,737 3,030,832 3,200,352 15,526,832 14,978,089

expected to catch up to expenses in these districts in the following year.

For Business-type Activities:

1. Operating losses at Val Halla accounted for the majority of the decline in net assets

2. Operating profits in the sewer fund roughly equaled the yearly depreciation, resulting in no change in net

assets.
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3. The reduction in principal debt due in Senior Housing more than offset operating losses from depreciation,
resulting in a small increase in net assets.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTEVITIES

The total cost of governmental activities this year was $20,139,282. After taking into consideration the program
revenues, the ultimate cost to the taxpayer was $18,218,486 (on the Statement of Activities). Many programs are

subsidized through user fees, grants and coniributions.

Governmental activities resulted in an increase to the Town of Cumberland’s net assets of $718,263.

$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
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$2,000,000
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

The total expense in Business-type activities this year was $1,892,336; however, after considering the total
amounts paid by users, the total cost was $177,222. These costs are absorbed by the individual funds and the
costs are not passed on to the taxpayer. These costs are almost entirely due to depreciation and operating losses
in the Val Halla fund.

Business-type revenues were 100% derived from charges for services.

{Information from Statement 2)

Expenses and Program Revenues-Business-type Activities For the Year Ended
June 30, 2010
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THE TOWN’S FUNDS

As of June 30, 2010, the Town’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $7,477,341, up from
$5,782,728 a year ago. This increase is primarily due to additional funds from the bonding of Route 88 Road
Improvements, and remaining funds from the bond issuance from the prior year. This more than offset bond funds
spent during the year. With the majority of the Range Rd and Route 88 funds expected to be spent by the end of
FY 2011, this amount will drop sharply next year.

2009 and 2010 Revenue by Source
100%

80%

60%
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GENERAL MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS

The information below summarizes revenues of the General Fund for 2010 and 2009. Information is extracted
from Statement 4.

Revenues by Function 2010 2008
Taxes 517,226,310 16,541,295
licenses & Permits 101,642 88,091
Intergovernmental 987,905 1,114,062
Charges for Services 819,907 728,644
Other 323,470 633,076

$189,459,234 19,105,168

The information below summarizes expenditures of the General Fund for 2010 and 2009. Information is extracted
from Statement 4.

Expenditures by Function 2010 2009
General Government S 1,031,502 1,076,082
Puhlic Safety 1,949,939 1,992,024
Public Works 866,539 895,022
Health, Sanitation & Welfare 856,075 833,056
Recreation Programs 498,395 482,173
Education & Libraries 11,291,481 10,725,405
Unclassified 1,525,919 1,440,913
Debt Service 589,514 660,591
Subtotal Expenditures 18,609,364 18,106,116
Transfers for Capital Outlay 844,840 420,000
Total $ 19,454,204 18,526,166
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2009 and 2010 Expenditure by Function
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Overall, Governmental expenses increased compared to the prior year. The largest dollar increase in the amount
of $566,076 came from MSAD #51, largely due to decreases in state funding. The next largest increase of $200,758
was in Capital Projects. Extra funds were allocated for engineering fees related to the drainage improvements
along Route 88, in addition to an assortment of smaller road improvement projects and equipment purchases.
General Government expenses decreased largely due to the shortened work week, which was in existence for only
half of the prior year. Public Safety expenses decreased as a result of the termination of the regional rescue
program, and the subsequent merger of the Rescue and Fire departments. Public Works expenses decreased due
to a fairly mild winter, although this was partially offset by increases in fuel and raw materials costs. A sharp
increase in General Assistance requests resulted in an increase to the Health, Sanitation and Welfare category.
One decrease that may surprise people is in Debt Service. The decrease in General Fund debt service is largely
related to decreased expenses from the Tax Anticipation note, and not from lower debt service payments. While
the debt service payments in the General Fund did remain constant, payments cut of the TIF districts increased by
$140,490.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The Town of Cumberland has three (3) enterprise funds {Senior Housing, Sewer System, and Val Haila Golf &
Recreation Center). The total assets for these funds are $6,352,155. The total net assets (assets — liabilities) are
$3,030,832. The total unrestricted net assets are ${1,440,318). This represents a decrease in both total and net
assets. This information is extracted from Statement 7. Depreciation accounts for the decrease in total assets.
While decreases in principal owed in the Val Halla and Senior Housing funds helps to decrease the overall liabilities,
operating losses from the Val Halla Fund continue to increase interfund loans payable, and thus drag down the net
assets of the proprietary funds overall.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

As demonstrated by the following description and the schedule at the bottom of this page, the Town continues to
meet its responsibilities for sound financial management, in spite of a weak year for revenues. The actual revenues
fell short of budgeted revenues by $130,680. Three big shortfalls contributed to this miss. While the Town
decreased its budgeted revenues for State Revenue Sharing significantly, they still felf short of budget by $83,847.
The next item involves the use of Fund Balance. The Town had originally planned to sell an unneeded fire engine
during FY 09-10, but instead it sold faster than anticipated, and ended up showing up in FY 08-09. Thus, the prior
year's gain was this year’s loss. The final disappointing revenue line was Interest on Investments, which fell short
by $83,658. Because the Town only holds on to funds for months at a time, enly very short term investments can
be made with this money. Unfortunately, the investment climate has been very poor in this area for the past year.
All three of these lines have either been eliminated of reduced for the coming year.

Two items on the expense side that may seem odd are the unbudgeted amount of $53,374 for Circuit Breaker
Assistance, and overage of $47,807 in Code Enforcement. These items are both accounting corrections including
amounts from prior years. These amounts had previously existed in separate funds from the General Fund, but
with recent changes to accounting rules, their balances now need to be reported in the General Fund. The first
item refers to the Town Circuit Breaker program, which is designed to work alongside the state program. The
second item is inspection fees reimbursed by developers for larger construction projects. These items will
continue to show up in the future, but for much smaller amounts.

Excluding the budgeted overlay of $678,177, actual expenditures were above budget by $318,385. The budgeted
overlay would normally create a positive budget variance of $678,177. However, expenditures other than the
overlay exceeded their budget by $318,385, which reduces the positive variance of the overlay to $229,112. This
excess was partially used to close out the Comprehensive Plan Fund and repay deficits in other funds. After
transfers, the change in fund balance was $5,030.

The excess was handled in the following manner:
$7,337 to cover overages in the Unemployment Fund
51,060 to close the Comprehensive Plan Fund
$100,988 to cover averages in the Equipment Reserve Fund
$100,000 to cover overages in the Town Building Reserves Fund

Transfers in from the Impact Fee Fund and out to other special revenue funds accounted for the remaining
difference between the overlay variance and the final fund balance.

The bottom line is a fund balance that increased by $5,030, resulting in an ending fund balance of $1,999,806. This
amount represents 11% of the total General Fund expenditures. While this amount does meet the Town's goal fo
try to maintain as close to 10% as possible, it is important to note that the majority of this balance is made up of
Interfund loans due to the general fund, and thus the actual fund balance available remains quite fow.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADIMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS

At the end of 2010, the Town of Cumberland’s Governmental Activities had invested $2,545,124 in a range of
capital assets including police, fire and public works equipment, building Improvements, and in particular, major
infrastructure improvements. The depreciation for 2010 was $914,389, resulting in a net capital asset investment
of $1,630,735. The Town also had $2,809,619 worth of construction in progress.

Much like 2009, 2010 was a busy year for infrastructure improvements, and also like the prior year, an even
greater amount is still listed as construction in progress. At different times during the year, construction was
occurring related to 3 different bond issuances. Work on the 2008 $2.88 million issuance was mostly completed
during the year, the bulk of the work for 2009 Range Road bond occurred during the year, and work began in the
spring on the 2010 Route 88 Bond.

By far, the largest project completed was the addition of waterlines along Route 100, the major road running
north-south through the western end of the Town. Completed at a total cost of $1,561,419, this project eliminates
the need for wells along this commercial section of the Town, and it is hoped that it will help spur future
comimercial development in this region. The project was funded by the 2008 bond issuance, and its yearly debt
service payments will come from the Town's TIF districts. The completion of this project accounted for most of the
decreases to construction in progress.

Costing $310,553, the next largest infrastructure project was the completion of repaving and drainage
improvements along Grove, Phillips, Bea Streets & Karole Lane. Because these are all short streets in the same
neighborhood, they were all lumped together as one large project. This project also reduced construction in
progress from the prior year.

Another project funded by the 2008 bond was the creation of the infrastructure for the Castlerock Business Park at
a cost of $279,496. located within the Route 100 TIF District, it is hoped that the business park will serve as an
anchor for future commercial development projects in the area. This project also contributed to the decreases in
construction in progress.

The fargest active project in the Town continued to be the complete reconstruction and addition of waterlines
along Range Road. As of June 30", this project was up to $2,438,499 in construction in progress, of which
$2,107,196 occurred during the fiscal year. By the fall of 2010, this project is mostly complete, but the final paving
will not occur until the spring of 2011. The project should be more than 95% complete by the end of FY 2011, and
should appear as a new asset in the next year’s audit. This project is funded by the 2009 $4 million bond issuance,

and yearly debt service payments will come from the TIF districts.

The final major construction project began in the spring of 2010. This project is to make drainage and road repairs
along Routie 88, which runs north to south along the Cumberland Foreside. As the original road from Portland to
points north and east, this road has a very long history, and is fed by a large number of residential side roads.
While the road itself was not in great condition, the larger issue was drainage. Ponding of water and street
flooding on a regular basis caused negative impacts to many of the homes along the corridor. Runoff from the area
also had an adverse impact on the clam flats. The new drainage is expected to help water quality improvement.
Shoulders along the road were also paved, sightlines were improved, and scme sections of the road were rebuilt.
At the end of the fiscal year, only $340,230 of a $4.1 million bond had been spent, but this amount will rise sharply
in the following year. Debt service for this bond will be paid by the General Fund.
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Two other much smaller infrastructure projects were completed during the year. The parking area in front of the
Public Works garage, which is also used as the parking area for the MSAD 51 school buses, was regraded, paved,
and re-wired for better lighting at a cost of $62,984. MSAD 51 then reimbursed the Town for slightly less than half
the cost of this project, resulting in a net cost of $33,218. The other project was the expansion of sidewalks along
the Senior Housing projects, at a total cost of $20,941.

The largest building improvement was the complete replacement of the Town Hall roof, at a total cost of $74,800.
Given that the Town hall is less than 15 years old, this expense obviously occurred far sooner than anyone had
expected. Unfortunately, sub-standard work performed on the original installation was resulting in massive leaks
and ice-dams every winter, and thus a replacement was required before the problem did even more damage to the
building. Using grant funds from the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act, the Town added a solar hot water
generator for the Town. The system cost $12,669, and 90% of this cost was reimbursed by the grant. Because the
hot water came from the same propane tank as the heating system, it will take a full year to assess the yearly
savings from this project, but early returns suggest that it has already paid for the net investment by the Town of
$1,267 six months later.

A number of small improvements to the HVAC, boiler systems, and windows of the Prince Memorial Library cost a
combined total of $14,871.

The Town made two exciting land improvements during the year. At a total cost of $16,640, a composting area
was build next to the Public Works Garage. Cumberland residents can now bring yard waste to add to the piles,
and can also receive processed garden and yard compost free of charge. Using donated funds, the first piece of a
new veterans monument located at the Moss Side Cemetery was installed at a cost of $9,475. Two additional
pieces will eventually flank this monument once additional funds are raised.

Using grant funding, the Fire Department purchased 6 Dell Latitude laptops at cost of $2,000 each for use in the
vehicles. They also purchased a motorized folding stretcher for the ambulance for $11,221, and a new hydraulic
cutting tool for emergency vehicle extractions costing $6,045. The department also purchased a software bridge
used to transfer data from the rescue call tracking software to the Ortivus hilling software for $4,000.

The Police Depariment purchased a new treadmill and an elliptical trainer for the downstairs training area, using
DEA Seized funds of $3,825. They also purchased a Watchguard video monitoring system for one of the cruisers at
a cost of $6,040.

The fargest equipment purchase of the year was made by the Public Works Department, which obtained a Komatsu
WA200 6-wheeled loader for $97,500. This piece of equipment is used on all manner of construction projects in
the summer, and is used for parking lot plowing and loading of snow in the winter. To enable quick switching of
the buckets and plows needed for the variety of jobs performed by this machine, a “quick coupler” was also
purchased for $12,030.

Other purchases include a 516,000 trailer used 1o transport Parks Department mowing equipment from site to site
and $7,573 in smaller purchases for binding of Town records, electric upgrades for the new Fire Department

housing, and a new light bar for a Fire Department vehicle.

The Business-type Activities received $59,789 in capital contributions paid for by Governmental Activities. The
depreciation expense in 2009-10 was $269,369. The capital net investment for 2010 was $-209,580.
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The additions consisted of two new investments, both of which were made at Val Halla. The main expense was the
construction of additional cart paths at a total cost of $57,743. Completion of these paths means that Val Halla will
have at least 9 holes open for cart usage far more often than in the past. With cart rentals comprising a large
chunk of Val Halla revenues, this addition has already had a noticeable impact. The course also purchased a new
motorized trap rake for $2,046.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Land 5 3,020,600 3,020,000 - - 3,020,000 3,020,000
Construction In progress 2,809,619 2,084,948 - - 2,809,619 2,084,948.00
Land improvements 1,352,976 1,378,402 1,321,679 1,333,440 2,674,655 2,712,842
Buildings & buiiding improvements 4,796,722 4,867,692 1,720,865 1,798,955 6,517,587 b,666,647
Machinery & equipment 670,680 735,474 209,859 248,948 880,539 984,422
Furniture & office equipment 1,031,967 1,044,414 3,675 4,383 1,035,642 1,048,797
Computer equipment 85,393 110,019 - - 85,393 110,018
Vehicles 1,753,351 1,866,294 3,054 4,237 1,756,405 1,870,531
Infrastructure 8,019,516 6,076,574 2,452,261 2,531,010 10,471,777 8,607,584
Totals $ 23,540,224 21,184,817 5,711,393 5,920,973 29,251,617 27,105,790

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

General Obligation ‘

Bonds and Notes S 17,835,201 14,532,264 1,178,089 1,259,034 19,013,210 15,791,298

The Town’s fiscal year 2011 major capital expenditure will be the bulk of the drainage and road improvements
along Route 88. The $4.1 million bonded for this project is responsible for the increase in debt shown above, and is
discussed in greater detail on prior pages. This project began in earnest in late spring 2010, and will be mostly
complete by the following spring.

The Town will also completé work related to the 2008 and 2009 bonds in 2011. A final stretch of wateriine along
Route 100 will finish off the 2008 bond. Range Road will receive its final “top-coat” of asphalt in the spring of
2011, and this will complete expenses from that bond as well.

Similar to the past few years, 2011 will hopefully be a relatively quiet year for non-infrastructure purchases. The
Police Department will purchase two new cruisers, and the Fire Department will purchase a new ambulance. The
HVAC system at the Town Hall will get an upgrade and the Fire station will both receive new solar hot water tanks
as a result of an ARRA grant.

Additional information on the Town of Cumberland’s capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Basic Financiaf
Statements on pages 51-52 of this report.

DEBT

At year end, the Town had $19,013,210 in bonds and notes payable, versus $15,791,298 last year; an increase of
20.4% or $3,221,912. This increase is a result of the $4.1 million bond for drainage and road improvements along
Route 88 that arrived in May 2010, and is partially offset by principal payments.
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The Town of Cumberland’s rating for cur bond issues is AA-. This is the fourth highest rating given by Standard &
Poor. It is the second highest grade quality (with AAA being the highest grade quality and AA+, AA, and AA- being
high grade quality ratings).

Additional information on the Town of Cumberland’s long-term debt can be found in the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements on pages 56-57 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

At first glance, The Town of Cumberfand’s FY 10-11 municipal expense budget remained essentiaily unchanged
from the prior year. The “municipal” budget refers to all General Fund expenses other than those assessed by
MSAD 51. Because the Town does not control the SAD assessment, the municipal budget is created and approved
in April of each year prior to the announcement of the school assessment to the Town. Thus, the municipal budget
for FY 10-11 is $7,986,788, compared with 58,013,776 in 2010.

Even when one views the budgets at the departmental level, many of the budgets seem similar to the prior year.
While this is certainly true, these similar numbers are actually the resuit of a few major offsetting factors,

The primary factor driving costs upwards was employee payroll. After taking a pay cut in FY 08-09 and no cost of
living increase in FY 09-10, all non-union employees received a 2% pay increase. Union employee received no
increase. This increase was offset by a number of other cuts.

Personnel cuts made by Public Works and Prince Memorial Library in the prior year came to have a full year's
impact on the budget, which helped those departments. With the depariure of 3 recreation employees by the end
of FY 2010, the Town made a major change in this Department. Rather than simply replacing these positions, the
Town hired Brian Bickford to be in charge of both the Recreation Department and also the Pro Shop staff and
Programs Director at Val Halla. The existing Public Works administrative assistant then moved to Recreation, and
her position was filled by one of the front counter clerks. The clerk position was not replaced, and a portion of the
Recreation Director and administrative assistant positions’ salaries will be borne by Val Halla. The net result of all
these moves was a reduction of one department head position and one clerk position.

However, the largest cut came in the form of employee benefits. Facing yet another year of double-digit health
insurance increases, the Town discontinued its HMQ plan in favor of two very different PPO options. The first PPO
is a traditional plan, and costs roughly the same as the prior year's HMO for only a small reduction in benefits.
Slightly less than half of the Town’s employees chose this option. The second option is a high-deductible PPO with
a Health Reimbursement Account built in to help pay for this deductible. While this plan definitely saves on
premium costs and is budgeted to save on overali cosis as well, it does come with drawbacks. Both the employees
and the Town carry far more risk with this plan. The employees carry extra risk if they have unforeseen out of
network expenses, and the Town carries a risk that if a high number of employee accrue large expenses, the Town
will end up paying the extra costs. This plan was implemented on a small scale in the prior year, and those results
led to the budget reductions in the current year.

All these changes proved vital, as the MSAD 51 assessment increased by roughly $916,431 over the pﬁor year,

While the actual spending for the district remained flat compared to the prior year, major losses in state aid to the
school caused the assessment to the Town to grow. This caused an overall increase in spending of 5%.
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2010

Non-property tax revenues also had to be reduced slightly from the prior year. This is due to a budgeted decrease
of $150,000 in State Revenue Sharing. If not for this very large decrease, revenues would actually have increased
by $114,492, a result of an increase in the price of trash bags, and many other revenues returning slightly from
their drops brought on by the recession.

In the end, the General Fund budget came in at $19,817,125, up from $18,912,397 in 2009-10. Non-property tax
revenues decreased by $35,508, which contributed to a mil rate increase from $14.55 to $15.30.

As for the Town's business-type activities: The Sewer Fund enjoyed another year of operating profits, and no
increase to the Town's assessment is scheduled for FY 2011. As a result, the fund is beginning to pull out of the
deficit created in prior years, and might make it into the black within a few years. This means that after many
years of rate increases, the light at the end of the tunnel has appeared.

Expenses for Senior Housing slightly outpaced revenues in 2010. Howaever, rate increases for 2011 have pulled the
fund back to a break-even state. The Town will be pursuing possible energy efficiency improvements for the units
in 2011, as well as the possibility of re-financing the original bond for the construction of the units. This bond stil
has principal remaining of $960,000, and is carrying a high interest rate compared to those at present.

The financial statements for Val Halla at first appear similar to the prior year, but they actually mask some real
improvement. lgnoring accumulated depreciation, Valhalla’s operating loss improved by $34,168 over the pricr
year. However, this is still a very large operating loss of $97,936. While the course was busier and garnered better
reviews in the summer of 2010 than in many years, the operating profit has not improved from the prior year.
While the Town has certainly succeeded in refurbishing Val Halla’s reputation and popularity, it has not enjoyed the
same success with regard to profitability. It appears that more difficult decisions are in store with regard to Val
Halla in the coming year.

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors, creditors with a
general overview of the Town’s finances and to show the Town’s accountability for the money it receives. If you

have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Alex Kimball, Finance
Director, 290 Tuttle Road, Cumberland, ME, 04021.
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Statement of Net Assets

Statement 1

June 30, 2010
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ) 5,254,680 215,651 5,470,331
Invesimenis 261,797 271,109 532,906
Receivables:
Accounts 93,630 154,002 247,632
Intergovernmental 149,218 - 149,218
Taxes receivable - prior years 58,195 - 58,195
Taxes receivable - current year 271,605 - 271,605
Tax liens 146,227 - 146,227
Internal balances 1,982,224 (1,982,224} -
Capital assets not being depreciated 6,819,735 - 6,819,735
Capital assets being depreciated, net 16,720,489 5,711,393 22,431,882
Total assets 31,757,800 4,369,931 36,127,731
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 422,104 53,501 475,605
Accrued payroll 101,658 13,719 115,377
Accrued compensated absences 152,575 10,034 162,609
Accrued interest payable 155,317 - 155,317
Unearned revenue 42,145 21,602 63,747
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 1,159,025 116,508 1,275,533
Due in more than one year 17,228,976 1,123,735 18,352,711
Total liabilities 19,261,800 1,339,099 20,600,899
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 11,713,982 4,471,150 16,185,132
Restricted for:
Capital projects 5,755,906 - 5,755,906
Expendable trust 162,356 - 162,356
Nonexpendable trust principal 99,241 - 89,241
Unrestricted (5,235,485) (1,440,318) (6,675,803)
Total net assets S 12,496,000 3,030,832 15,526,832

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement 3

TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010
Twin Other Total
Bond Brook Range Governmental Governmental
General Fund Fund Road Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents S 5,254,680 - - - - 5,254,680
Investments - - - - 261,797 261,797
Receivablas:
Accounts 93,610 - - - 20 93,630
Intergovernmental 38,407 B - - 109,811 149,218
Taxes receivable - prior years 58,195 - - - - 58,195
Taxes receivable - current year 271,605 - - - - 271,605
Tax liens 146,227 - - - - 146,227
Interfund loans receivable - 4,378,800 - 1,620,600 422,792 6,422,192
Total assets S 5,863,724 4,373,800 - 1,620,600 794,420 12,657,544
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabifities:
Accounts payable 135,551 167,334 460 76,160 40,595 420,104
Accrued payroll 100,852 - - - 806 101,658
Interfund loans payable 3,411,767 - 608,082 - 422,119 4,441,968
Deferred revenue 215,748 - - - - 215,748
Security deposit - - - - 725 725
Total liabilities 3,863,918 167,334 608,547 76,160 464,249 5,180,203
Fund balances {deficits):
Reserved for:
Permanent funds:
Expendable trust - - - - 162,356 162,356
Principal - - - - 99,241 99,241
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund 1,999,806 - - - - 1,999,806
Special revenue funds - - - - 52,230 52,230
Capital proiects funds - 4,211,466 {608,542) 1,544,440 16,344 5,163,708
Total fund balances {deficits) 1,993,806 4,211,466 (608,542} 1,544,440 336,171 7,477,341
Total liabilities and fund balances 5 5,863,724 4,378,800 - 1,620,600 794,420

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 23,540,224
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 174,328

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Bonds and notes payable (17,835,203}
Capital leases {101,600}
Accrued interest {(155,317)
Accrued compensated absences {152,575)
Landfiil lability {451,200
{18,695,893)
Net assets of governmental activities S 12,496,000

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE

Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2610

Statement &

Twin Other Total
Bond Brook Range Governmental Governmental
General Fund Fund Road Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes S 17,226,310 - - - 853,066 18,079,376
Licenses and permits 101,642 “ - - - 101,642
Intergovernmentat 987,905 - - - 21,523 1,009,428
Charges for services 819,907 - - - 130,676 950,583
Rental income - - - - 182,241 182,241
Other 323,470 - 2,506 - 215,001 541,977
Total revenues 19,459,234 - 2,506 - 1,403,507 20,865,247
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,031,502 - - - - 1,031,502
Pubtic safety 1,949,939 - - - - 1,949,939
Public works 866,539 - - - - 866,539
Health, sanitation and welfare 856,075 - - - - 856,075
Recreation 498,395 - - - - 458,395
Education and libraries 11,291,481 - - - - 11,291,481
County tax 615,032 - - - - 615,032
Unclassified 910,887 - - - 211,396 1,122,283
Capital cutlay - 517,720 4,812 2,124,257 1,049,442 3,696,231
Debt service:
Principal 359,066 - - - 437,997 797,063
Interest 230,448 - - - 385,444 615,892
Total expenditures 18,609,364 517,720 4,812 2,124,257 2,084,279 23,340,432
Excess (deficlency) of revanues over (under) expenditures 849,870 {517,720) {2,306} (2,124,257) {680,772} {2,475,185})
Other financing sources {uses}:
Issuance of capital lease - - - - 77,500 77,500
Issuance of debt - 4,100,000 - - - 4,100,000
Transfers in - - - - 847,270 847,270
Transfers out (844,840) - - - (10,132) {854,372)
Total other financing sources (uses}) (844,840) 4,100,000 - - 914,638 4,169,798
Net change in fund balances 5,030 3,582,280 {2,306} (2,124,257} 233,866 1,694,613
Fund balances {deficits}, beginning of year 1,994,776 629,186 (606,236) 3,668,697 56,305 5,782,728
Fund balances (deficits), end of year S 1,999,806 4,211 466 (608,542) 1,544,440 330,171 7,477,341
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Statement 5

TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Net change in fund bafances - total governmental funds (from Statement 4) S 1,694,613

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities (Statement 2} are different because:

Governmenta! funds report capital cutlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays (53,269,796) exceeded
depreciation expense (5914,389) 2,355,407

Expenses in the statement of activities that do not consume current
financial resources are not reported as expenses in the funds, 8,996

The issuance of capital lease provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but capital leases increases long-term liabilities in the
statement of net assets. Repayment of lease principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. This is the amount
by which lease proceeds ($77,500) exceeded principal payments (539,684) (37,816)

The bond issuance provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases fong-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
assets. This is the amount by which proceeds (54,100,000}
exceeded debt repayments {$797,063). (3,302,937)

Change in net assets of governmental activities (see Statement 2) S 718,263

See gccompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement &6

TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actuat
General Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)
Revenues:
Taxes S 17,141,016 17,141,010 17,226,310 85,300
Licenses and permits 99,880 99,880 101,642 1,762
Intergovernmental 1,051,057 1,051,097 987,905 (63,192)
Charges for services 813,615 813,615 819,907 6,292
Other 484,312 484,312 323,470 (160,842)
Total revenues 19,589,914 19,589,914 19,459,234 (130,680)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 965,179 965,179 1,031,502 (66,323)
Public safety 1,798,158 1,798,158 1,949,939 (151,781)
Public works 867,985 867,985 866,539 1,446
Health, sanitation and welfare 781,364 781,364 856,075 (74,711)
Recreation programs 459,334 459,334 498,395 (39,061)
Education and libraries 11,286,432 11,286,432 11,291,481 (5,049)
County tax 615,032 615,032 615,032 -
Unclassified 1,543,830 1,543,830 910,887 632,943
Debt service 651,842 651,842 589,514 62,328
Total expenditures 18,969,156 18,969,156 18,609,364 © 359,792
Excess of revenues over
expenditures 620,758 620,758 849,870 229,112
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (620,758) (620,758) {844,840) (224,082)
Total other financing uses (620,758) (620,758) {844,840) (224,082)
Net change in fund balance - - 5,030 5,030
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,994,776
Fund balance, end of year [ 1,999,306

See accompanying notes to financial stgtements.
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Statement 7

TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2010

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Senior Val Halla
Housing Sewer Golf and
Fund System Recreation Center Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 201,621 - 14,030 215,651
Investments 271,109 - - 271,109
Accounts receivable - 154,002 - 154,002
Total current assets 472,730 154,002 14,030 640,762
Noncurrent assets:
Property, plant, and equipment 1,626,600 3,937,449 4,028,052 9,592,101
Less accumulated depreciation (855,099) (1,485,190) (1,540,419) {3,880,708)
Total noncurrent assets 771,501 2,452,259 2,487,633 5,711,393
Total assets 1,244,231 2,606,261 2,501,663 6,352,155
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 9,172 - 44,329 53,501
Accrued payroli - - 13,719 13,719
Accrued compensated absences - - 10,034 10,034
Interfund loans payable 96,622 226,985 1,658,617 1,982,224
Security deposit 21,602 - - 21,602
Lease payable, current - - 30,380 30,380
Bonds payable, current 66,128 - 20,000 86,128
Total current liabilities 193,524 226,985 1,777,079 2,197,588
Noncurrent liahilities:
Lease payable - - 31,854 31,854
Bonds payable 1,071,881 - 20,000 1,091,881
Total noncurrent lfabilities 1,071,881 - 51,854 1,123,735
Total liabilities 1,265,405 226,985 1,828,933 3,321,323
MNET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (366,508) 2,452,259 2,385,399 4,471,150
Unrestricted 345,334 (72,983) (1,712,669) (1,440,318)
Total net assets S (21,174) 2,379,276 672,730 3,030,832

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Statement 8

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Senior Val Halla
Housing Sewer Golf and
Fund System Recreation Center Totals
Operating revenues:
Rental income S 268,458 - - 268,458
Golf memberships - - 222,393 222,393
Greens fees - - 152,481 152,481
Golf cart rentals - - 127,162 127,162
Sewer assessments - 812,226 - 812,226
Food and beverage sales - - 13,409 13,409
Other 113 19,016 26,473 45,602
Total operating revenues 268,571 831,242 541,918 1,641,731
Operating expenses:
Cost of sales and supplies - - 13,007 13,007
Wages and benefits 63,986 - 379,305 443,291
Utilities 49,310 - 43,191 92,501
Maintenance 35,386 - 101,646 137,032
Greens maintenance - - 44,716 44,716
Gas and oil - - 14,642 14,642
Wastewater assessment - 733,248 - 733,248
Other 10,609 19,991 43,348 73,948
Depreciation 42,310 78,749 148,310 269,369
Total operating expenses 201,601 831,988 788,165 1,821,754
Operating income (loss) 66,970 {746) {246,247) {180,023)
Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Capital contributions - - 59,789 59,789
Interest income 13,594 - - 13,594
Interest expense {68,821) - {1,761) {70,582)
Total noneperating revenue (expense) {55,227) - 58,028 2,801
Income hefore transfers 11,743 (746) (188,219) (177,222)
Transfer in - - 7,702 7,702
Change in net assets 11,743 {746) {180,517) {169,520)
Total net assets, beginning of year {32,917) 2,380,022 853,247 3,200,352
Total net assets, end of year ] (21,474) 2,379,276 672,730 3,030,832

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Statement 9

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Senior Val Halla
Housing Sewer Golf and
Fund System Recreation Center Totals
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users 5 282,376 753,239 675,741 1,711,356
Payments to suppliers (93,657}  {753,239) (253,560} (1,100,456}
Payments to employees {63,986} - (376,446) {440,432)
Net cash provided by operating activities 124,733 - 45,735 170,468
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Bond, note and lease principal payments {65,809) - (43,974) (109,783}
Interest paid (68,821} - (1,761) {70,582}
Net cash used in financing activities (134,630} - {45,735) {180,365)
Cash flows from investing activities:
investment income 10,401 - - 10,401
Net cash provided by investing activities 10,401 - - 10,401
Increase in cash 504 - - 504
Cash, beginning of year 201,117 - 14,030 215,147
Cash, end of year [ 201,621 - 14,030 215,651
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income {loss} 5 66,970 (746) (246,247) (180,023)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 42,310 78,749 148,310 269,369
{Increase} decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable - {8,302) 5,339 (2,963}
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,648 - 6,990 8,638
Accrued payroll - - 1,788 1,788
Accrued compensated absences - - 1,071 1,071
Security deposit 62 - - 62
Interfund loans 13,743 {69,701) 128,484 72,526
Net cash provided by operating activities 124,733 - 45,735 170,468
Non-cash transactions:
Reclass of capital expenditures - - 7,702 7,702

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF CUMIBERLAND, MAINE
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010

Statement 10

Private-purpose
Trust Fund
(Scholarships)

ASSETS

Investments 5 176,819

Accounts receivable 2,000
Total assets 178,819

LIABILITIES

Interfund loans payable -
Total liahilities -

NET ASSETS

Held in trust S 178,819

See accompanying noles to financial statements.
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Statement 11

TOWN OF CUMIBERLAND, MAINE
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Private-purpose
Trust Fund
(Scholarships)

Additions:

Donations S 450
Investment income 9,787
Total additions 10,237

Deductions:
Scholarships awarded 8,300
Total deductions 8,300
Change in net assets 1,937
Net assets, beginning of year 176,882
Net assets, end of year S 178,819

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Town of Cumberland conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant
of such policies:

Reporting Entity

The Town of Cumberland was incorporated in 1821 and operates under a Council-Manager form of government.
The Town is located in Cumberland County and has a population of 7,159,

in evaluating how to define the reporting entity for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit was made by applying the criteria
set forth by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The criterion used defines
the reporting entity as the primary government and those component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of the component
unit's board, and either a) the ability to impose will by the primary government, or b) the possibility that the
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government.
Application of this criterion and determination of type of presentation involves considering whether the activity
henefits the government and/or its citizens, or whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries
of the government and is generally available to its citizens. Based upon the application of these critetia, there are
no potential component units that should be included as part of this reporting entity.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. The Town has elected not to allocate indirect costs among the programs, functions and segments.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and confributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

42



TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
certain compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when the payment is due.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are properiy taxes, interest, and charges for services. Other receipts and taxes
become measurable and available when cash is received by the Town and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred
and all other grant requirements have been met.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Bond Fund is a capita! projects fund, which is used to account for the debt service requirements of a new
bond issuance related to various capital projects. This fund includes the Route 88 Bond, which is to be used
specifically for the Route 88 construction.

The Twin Brook Fund is a capital projects fund, which is used to account for the land improvement
expenditures on Town of Cumberland property.

The Range Road Fund is a capital projects fund, which is used to account for the expenditures related to the
Range Road reconstruction and the related bond proceeds used to pay for those expenditures.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Senior Housing Fund accounts for the construction and operation of senior housing units in Cumberland
overseen by the Cumberland Housing Authority.

The Sewer System accounts for the operation of a sewer system in Cumberland.

Val Halla Golf and Recreation Center accounts for revenues received and expenses incurred in the operation
of a bar and banquet facility owned by the Town and the Val Halla Golf Course.

Additionally, the Town reports the following Fiduciary Fund types:

Private-purpose Trust Funds are used to report the activity for bequests left for charitable payments of
scholarship awards. These assets are held by the Town in a trustee capacity, whereby the original bequest is
preserved as nonexpendable and the accumulated interest earnings are available to provide for educational
awards.

Fiduciary Funds use an economic resources measurement focus.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmential Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation. The Town has elected not to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and charges between the Town’s sewer fund and various
other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions cancerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special
assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Town’s proprietary funds are charges to
customers for sales and services; operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

Cash and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and time
deposits. Investments are stated at fair value. For statement of cash flow purposes, the Town considers cash and cash
equivalents to be demand deposits, certificates of deposit with maturities of less than three months, and money
market mutual funds.

The Town has established a formal investment policy that governs the investment of all of its funds. Pursuant to its
investment pelicy and applicable Maine law (Title 30-A, Section 5706 et. Seq. of the Maine Revised Statutes, as
amended) all investments of the Town must be made with care, prudence and skill. The goals of the investment
policy are to provide safety of principal through diversification of assets and to provide a high degree of liquidity in the
investments. The Town is not invested in any obligations typically referred to as derivatives.

Interfund Loans Receivable/Payable - Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as interfund loans or as interfund advances
(i.e. the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets {e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns
in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Infrastructure costs include assets that were acquired prior to the fiscal year ended June 30, 1980. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets
lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects as constructed. Interest incurred during
the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the
assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 15-40 years
Buildings and building improvements 20-40 years
Machinery and equipment 3-30 years
Furniture and office equipment 3-30 years
Computer equipment 3-30 years
Vehicles 4-20 years
Infrastructure 12-60 years

Vacation and Sick Leave - Under terms of personnel policies and union contracts, vacation and sick leave are
granted in varying amounts according to length of service and are accrued ratably over the year. Regular part-time
employees receive vacation and sick leave on a pro-rated basis. Accumulated vacation time has been recorded as
a liability in the government-wide and proprietary fund.

Long-term Obligations - In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as iabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as
well as issuance costs if material to basic financial statements, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported
as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity - In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designated fund halances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources.

Interfund Transactions — Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or
expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements 1o a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it
that are properly chargeable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as
reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions are reported as
transfers. '
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Use of Estimates - Preparation of the Town’s financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent items at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Comparative Data/Reclassifications - Comparative data for the prior year have been presented only for certain
funds in the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position
and operations of these funds. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in
order to be consistent with the current year's presentation.

Net Assets - The net assets amount represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of bonds and capital leases payable and adding back any unspent proceeds. Net assets are
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislations
adopted by the Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of
other governments. The Town’s net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt was calculated as follows
at June 30, 2010:

Governmental Business-type
activities activities
Capital assets $ 33,318,918 9,592,101
Accumulated depreciation (9,778,694} (3,880,708)
Bonds and notes payable (17,835,201) (1,178,009)
Bond proceeds not yet expended 5,755,906 -
Long-term debt used to acquire assets
for business-type activities 354,653 -
Capital leases (101,600} {62,234}

Total invested in capital assets net of related debt 11,713,982 4,471,150

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.  Budgetary Information

The Town utilizes a formal budgetary accounting system to control revenues and expenditures. Budgets are
established in accordance with the various laws which govern the Town’s operations. For each of the funds
for which a formal budget is adopted, the same basis of accounting is used to reflect actual revenues and
expenditures recognized on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Budgets are adopted for the General Fund only and are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The level of control (level at which expenditures may not exceed
budget) is the Department. Generally, all unexpended budgetary accounts lapse at the close of the fiscal
year. The Town Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within and among departments;
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures must be approved by the Town Council.
Encumbrance accounting is not employed by the Town,

The budgeted financial statements represented in this report reflect the final budget authorization, including
all amendments.
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STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY, CONTINUED

B.  Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2010, the following General Fund expenditures exceeded appropriations in the
following departments:

Administration and council $35,941
Assessor 12,142
Treasurer and tax collector 702
Legal services 19,331
Police 61,058
Fire 42,916
Code enforcement 47,807
Waste services 1,615
General assistance 20,019
Recreation 39,061
Prince Memorial Library 5,049
Wast Cumberland recreation building 789
Parks 15,801
Cemetery association 180
Insurance 45,987
Street lighting 3,965
Municipal building maintenance 5,870
Debt service interest 261

These over expenditures lapsed to fund bafance at year end.
At June 30, 2010, the following funds had deficit fund balances/net assets:

Special Revenue Funds:

Rescue fund S 150

Fire grant fund 18,451
Capital Project Funds:

Road improvements 30,594

Parking lot fund 88,066

Town building reserves 157,988

Twin Brook Fund 608,542

Other Town capital projects 48,779
Enterprise Funds:

Senior Housing Fund 21,174

These fund deficits will be covered by future revenue sources.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk-Town Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Town’'s deposits may not be returned to it. The Town’s policy is to have its deposits covered by F.D.I.C.
insurance ar by additional insurance purchased on behalf of the Town by the respective banking institution.
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As of June 30, 2010, the Town reported deposits of 55,470,331 with a bank balance of 55,494,062. Of the
Town’s bank balances of $5,494,062, none was exposed to custodial credit risk. The entire balance of
$5,494,062 was covered by the F.D.L.C. or by additional insurance purchased on behalf of the Town by the
respective banking institutions.

Deposits have been reported as follows:

Reported in governmental funds $ 5,254,680
Reported in proprietary funds 215,651
Total deposits 55,470,331

B. Invesiments

At lune 30, 2010, the Town had the following investments and maturities:

Fair Less than More than

value 1 year 1-5 years 5 years
U. S. Government securities $ 237,397 - 157,088 80,309
U. S. treasury notes 422,323 45,157 283,581 93,585
Certificates of deposit 50,005 50,005 N/A N/A
Total investments $ 709,725 95,162 440,669 173,894

Custodial Credit Risk-Town Investments: For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event
of failure of the counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Town’s policy is to have its investments
covered by F.D.I.C. insurance or by additional insurance purchased on behalf of the Town by the respective
financial institution,

Of the Town’s $50,005 investment in certificates of deposit, none was subject to custodial credit risk
because it was covered by F.D.L.C. insurance.

Of the Town’s $237,397 investment in U.S. Government Securities, none was subject to custodial credit
risk because it was collateralized by underlying securities held by the related bank, which were in the
Town’s name.

The Government securities include Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Home Loan Mortgage
(Freddie Mac), and Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) bonds with fair values of $47,757,
$67,595, and $122,045, respectively, and are all rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings.

Investments have been reported as follows:

Reported in governmental funds $ 261,797
Reported in fiduciary funds 176,819
Reported in proprietary funds 271,109

Total investments S 709,725

Interest Rate Risk: The Town does not have a policy related to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk: Maine statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S.
agencies, repurchase agreements and certain corporate stocks and bonds. The Town does not have a
formal policy related to credit risk.
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PROPERTY TAX

The Town's property tax is levied on the assessed value listed as of the prior April 1 for all real and taxable personal
property located in the Town. Assessed values are periodically established by the Assessor at 100% of the
assumed market value. Each property must be reviewed no less than once every four years.

Property taxes were levied August 12, 2009 on the assessed values of real property as of April 1, 2008. Taxes were
due September 15, 2009 and March 15, 2010. This assessed value of $1,141,736,800 was 100% of the estimated
market value and 98.3% of the 2010 state valuation of $1,162,000,000. The Town completed a revaluation of all

Town properties in 2008.

The Town is permitted by the laws of the State of Maine to levy taxes up to 105% of its net budgeted expenditures
for the related fiscal period. The amount raised in excess of 100% is referred to as overlay, and amounted to
$678,177 for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Tax liens are placed on real property within twelve months following the tax commitment date if taxes are
delinquent. The Town has the authority to foreciose on property eighteen months after the filing of the lien if tax
liens and associated costs remain unpaid.

Property taxes levied during the year ended were recorded as receivables at the time the levy was made. The
receivables collected during the year ended and in the first sixty days following the end of the fiscal year have been
recorded as revenues. The remaining receivables have been recorded as deferred revenues.

The following summarizes the periods ended June 30, 2010 and 2069 levies:

2010 2009
Valuation:
Land $ 527,704,800 528,748,100
Buildings 603,371,100 596,267,400
Personal property 10,660,900 16,807,300

Total assessed valuation 1,141,736,800 1,135,822,800

Assessed value 1,141,736,800 1,135,822,800
Tax rate {per $1,000) 14.55 14.00
Commitment 16,612,270 15,901,519
Supplemental taxes assessed - 5,805
16,612,270 15,907,324

Less:
Collections and abatements 16,340,665 15,595,030
Receivable at June 30 $271,605 312,294
Due date(s) 9/15/09 9/15/08
3/15/10 3/15/09
Interest rate charged on delinguent taxes 9.00% 12.00%
Collection rate 98.4% 98.03%

As of July 1, 2007, per H.P. 1243 — L.D. 1735 an Act to Authorize Chebeague Istand to Secede from the Town of
Cumberland, Chebeague Island must pay to the Town of Cumberland 50% of the property taxes committed to the
Town of Chebeague Island from the Outer Islands for a period of 50 years; to be paid on an annual basis. As of
June 30, 2010 and 2009, Chebeague Island has paid $38,736 and $38,890, respectively.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended lune 30, 2010 was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, lune 30,
2009 Increases  Decreases 2010
Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Books and collections S 990,116 - - 990,116
Construction in progress 2,084,948 2,876,138 2,151,467 2,809,619
Land 3,020,000 - - 3,020,000
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 6,095,064 2,876,138 2,151,467 6,812,735
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 1,954,260 84,286 - 2,038,546
Buildings and buifding improvements 7,035,365 110,052 - 7,145,417
Machinery and equipment 1,823,818 60,206 137,213 1,746,811
Furniture and office equipment 256,751 2,500 28,030 231,221
Computer equipment 329,623 16,000 47,607 258,016
Vehicles 3,343,565 99,672 10,000 3,433,237
mfrastructure 9,433,527 2,172,408 - 11,605,935
Total capital assets being depreciated 24,176,909 2,545,124 222,850 26,499,183
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 574,858 110,712 - 685,570
Buildings and building improvements 2,167,673 181,022 - 2,348,695
Machinery and equipment 1,088,344 125,000 137,213 1,076,131
Furniture and office equipment 202,453 14,947 23,030 189,370
Computer equipment 219,604 40,627 47,607 212,623
Vehicles 1,477,271 212,615 10,000 1,679,886
Infrastructure 3,356,953 225,466 - 3,586,419
Total accumulated depreciation 9,087,156 914,389 222,850 9,778,694
Total capital asseis heing depreciated, net 15,089,753 1,630,735 - 16,720,489

Governmental activities capital assets, net  $ 21,184,817 4,506,873 2,151,467 23,540,224
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Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2009 Increases  Decreases 2010
Business-type activities:

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 51,879,196 57,743 - 1,936,935
Buildings and building improvements 3,190,034 - - 3,180,034
Machinery and equipment 517,790 2,046 28,073 491,763
Furniture and office equipment 12,263 - - 12,263
Vehicles 23,653 - - 23,653
Infrastructure, sewer 3,937,449 - - 3,937,449
Total capital assets heing depreciated 9,560,385 59,789 28,073 9,592,101
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 545,756 69,504 - 615,260
Buildings and building improvements 1,391,079 78,090 - 1,469,169
Machinery and equipment 268,842 41,135 28,073 281,904
Furniture and office equipment 7,880 708 - 8,588
Vehicles 18,416 1,183 - 20,599
Infrastructure, sewer 1,406,439 78,749 - 1,485,188
Total accumulated depreciation 3,639,412 269,369 28,073 3,880,708
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 5,920,973 (209,580) - 5,711,393
Business-type activitigs capital assets, net $5,920,973 {209,580) - 5,711,393

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 105,027
Public safety 202,690
Public works, including depreciation of general infrastructure assets 376,026
Health, sanitation and welfare 1,291
Recreation 152,404
Education and libraries 76,951
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $914,389
Business-type activities:
Senior Housing S 42,310
Sewer System 78,749
Val Halla Golf and Recreation Center 148,310
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities $ 269,369
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INTERFUND LOAN BALANCES

The purpose of interfund loans is to charge revenues and expenditures to the appropriate fund when that activity
is accounted for through the centralized checking account. The balances represent each fund’s portion of the
centralized checking account. Individual interfund loan receivable and payable balances at the year ended June 30,

2010 were as follows:
Interfund Interfund

Receivables  pavables

General Fund S - 3,411,767
Bond Fund 4,378,800 -
Twin Brook Fund - 608,082
Range Road Fund 1,620,600 -

Other Governmental Funds:
Special revenue funds:

Rescue Fund - 150
Unemployment Fund 1,199 -
Fire Grant Fund - 11,452
Recreation Programs Fund 64,070 -
Seacoast Fund 13,147 -
Police Fund 7,893 -
Total special revenue funds 86,309 11,602

Capital project funds:

Town Building Reserve - 163,961
Affordable Housing Fund 114,364 -
Land Acquisition Fund 17,960 -
School Renovations Fund 48,646 -

Road improvements Fund - 27,325

Parking Lot Fund - 87,854
TIF2 Route 1/100 65,577 -
TIF2 4,994 -

Other Town Capital Projects 84,712 131,377

Total capital project funds 336,253 410,517

Permanent funds:

Historical Fund 219 -
Prince Fund 11 -
Total permanent funds 230 -

Total Governmental Funds 6,422,192 4,441,968
Private-purpose Trust Funds 2,000 -
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Proprietary funds:
Senior Housing S - 96,622
Sewer System - 226,985
Val Halla Golf and Recreation Center - 1,658,617
Total proprietary funds - 1,982,224
Totals 6,424,192 6,424,192

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers consist of budgeted transfers to and from other funds to fund certain activities accounted for in
those funds and transfers to close out capital projects funds that are no longer needed. In particular, transfers
were done from the General Fund to the Dispatch Transition and the Road Improvement capital projects funds to
close those funds. In addition, remaining fund balances in the Revaluation, the Gravel Pit, the Fuel Tank Reserve,
and the CIP Car Chase capital projects funds were transferred to the General Fund and the Road Improvement and
Equipment Reserve capital projects funds. Transfers were also done from the Bond, Town Building, Equipment
Reserve, Fuel Tank Reserve, and TIF capital projects funds to cover capital expenditures in the Val Halla enterprise
fund and the Twin Brooks and Road Improvements capital project funds. Individual fund transfers for the year
ended lune 30, 2010 were as follows:
Transfers Transfers

in out
General Fund s - 844,840
Other Governmental Funds:
Special revenue funds:
Unemployment Fund 7,337 -
Backyard Composting - 2,430
Total special revenue funds 7,337 2,430
Capital project funds:
Town Building Reserve 160,430 7,702
Road improvements 415,538 -
Other town capital projects 263,965 -
Total capital project funds 839,933 7,702
Total Other Governmental Funds 847,270 10,132
Enterprise funds:
Val Halla Golf and Recreation Center 7,702 -
Tota!l enterprise funds 7,702 -
Totals % 854,972 854,972
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CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Beginning Ending  Due within
Balance Additions Reductions balance one year
Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds $13,704,931 4,100,000 714,330 17,090,601 1,011,546
Notes payable 827,333 - 82,733 744,600 82,733
Capital leases 63,785 77,500 39,685 101,600 30,246
Accrued compensated absences 160,171 152,575 160,171 152,575 152,575
Landfill post closure care costs 485,700 - 34,500 451,200 34,500
Total governmental activity
long-term liabilities 15,241,920 4,330,075 1,031,419 18,540,576 1,311,600
Business-type activities:
Bonds payable 1,025,000 - 65,000 960,000 70,000
Notes payable 234,034 - 16,025 218,009 16,128
Accrued compensated absences 8,963 10,034 8,963 10,034 10,034
Capital leases 91,209 - 28,975 62,234 30,380
Total business-type activity
long-term liabilities 1,359,206 10,034 118,963 1,250,277 126,542
Total long-term governmental
and business-type activities S 16,601,126 4,340,109 1,150,282 19,790,853 1,438,142

SHORT-TERM DEBT

The Town issues tax anticipation notes to cover cash shortfalls during the year
the year ended june 30, 2010, was as follows:

Tax anticipation notes

Beginning

balance Additions Reduction

. Tax anticipation note activity for

Ending
5 balance

- 1,850,000

1,850,000 =

On July 12, 2010, the Town Council approved a $3,000,000 Tax Anticipation Note, to be issued July 19, 2010. The
interest rate is 1.57% and the note is to be reimbursed with tax revenues.
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LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds and Notes Payable

Bonds and notes payable at June 30, 2010 are comprised of the following:

Originally  Date of Date of Interest
Issued issue maturity rate Balance
Bonds and notes payable:
Governmental activities:
Economic Development $ 4,100,000 5/27/10 5/1/2030 2.06-5.746% 4,100,000
Val Halla Clubhouse 750,000 10/30/96 11/1/2016 4.0-6.9% 354,653
New Town office 1,000,000 5/28/98 11/1/2018 4.528-5.378% 570,974
School renovation 1,700,000 5/28/98 11/1/2018 4.528-5.378% 579,558
Fire truck purchase 478,560 10/28/99 11/1/2019 4.283-5.908% 299,614
Fire trucks/Chebeague 1,000,000 4/1/02 4/1/2022 4.50-5.0% 700,000
Purchase Rines property 1,241,000 8/29/03  8/29/2019 4.50% 744,600
Stone Wharf 600,000 10/30/03  10/1/2023 3.0-5.0% 465,000
Capital projects 4,585,000 6/14/06 4/1/2026 3.50-4.63% 3,525,000
Infrastructure/Val Halla 2,775,802 5/15/08 11/1/2027  2.50-5.50% 2,495,802
Infrastructure Improvements 4,000,000 5/28/09 11/1/2029  2.08-5.58% 4,000,000
Total governmental activities 17,835,201
Business-type activity debt:

Senior Housing $1,325,000 12/31/91 12/1/2012 4.4-6.9% 920,000
Val Halla irrigation 236,000 12/31/91 12/1/2012 4.0-6.75% 40,000

Maine State Housing
Authority 362,954 1/2/92 7/1/2022 2.0% 218,009
Total business-type activity debt 1,178,009
Total bonds and notes payable $ 19,013,210

All governmentat activities long-term debt service requirements are paid by the General Fund, the School
Renovations Fund (Capital Projects Fund), or the TIF1 Fund (Capital Projects Fund). Business-type debt is paid by
the proprietary enterprise funds.

The annual debt service requirements to amortize bonds and notes payable are as follows:

Governmental activities Business-type activities

Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 S 1,094,279 685,155 86,128 67,662
2012 1,128,356 642,745 96,453 62,292
2013 1,157,307 593,816 76,786 57,220
2014 1,181,479 547,155 77,124 52,786
2015 1,039,987 505,199 77,470 48,330
2016-2020 5,035,251 1,933,964 502,784 161,016
2021-2025 4,045,192 971,509 261,264 16,087
2026-2030 3,153,350 223,240 - -
Totals 17,835,201 6,102,783 1,178,009 465,393
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT, CONTINUED

In accordance with 30 MRSA, Section 5061, as amended, no municipality shall incur debt for specified purposes in
excess of certain percentages of state valuation of such municipality. Additionally, no municipality shall incur debt
in the aggregate in excess of 15% of its state assessed valuation. At June 30, 2010, the Town's outstanding debt

did not exceed these limits.

Landfill - Under State [aw, Maine communities had until December 31, 1994 to close existing landfills under a DEP
approved plan. At December 31, 1993, Cumberland had closed its landfills and Is operating a transfer station on
Chebeague Island. Estimated post closure care costs amount to $451,200 in the governmental activities on the
statement of net assets (Statement 1). This amount may change due to changes in technology, inflation or
deflation, or applicable laws and regulations.

OVERLAPPING DEBT AND OTHER CONTINGENCIES

Overlapping Debt

The Town is subject to an annual assessment of its proportional share of Cumberland County expenses, including
debt repayment, as determined by the percentage of the Town's State valuation to the County's State valuation.
For the year ended June 30, 2010, the Town's State valuation of $1,131,350,000 was 2,71% of the County's State
valuation of $41,772,500,000. The Town's share is .54% or $20,208 of Cumberland County's $3,772,625 long-term
debt outstanding at June 30, 2010.

The Town's proportionate share of Maine School Administrative District #51 debt of $34,844,307 is $24,972,915
(71.67%). This debt service is included in the annual assessments to the Town.

Contingencies

Portland Water District - The Town is also served by the Portland Water District. At June 30, 2010, the Town's
share of self-supporting bonded water debt is 4.18% or $1,315,495 of total debt of $31,450,023. In addition,
the Town's share of direct wastewater debt is 4.18% or $130,850 of total debt of $32,604,976.

ecomaine - ecomaine, a Maine corporation with twenty participating municipalities including the Town of
Cumberland, has issued bonds to fund the design, construction and start-up of a resource recovery system.
The bonds are special revenue obligations of ecomaine, payable from and secured by a pledge of ecomaine
revenues. The bonds do not constitute a debt or liability within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory
provision of the State of Maine, or a pledge of the fuli faith and credit of any political subdivision of the State of
Maine. ecomaine has no taxing power. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the Waste Handling
Agreements, the participating municipalities are obligated severally to deliver certain of the solid waste
produced within each such participating municipality to ecomaine for processing in amounts which, when
added to other available monies, will at least equal required debt service of the bonds. The obligations of the
participating municipalities under the Waste Handling Agreements are secured by the full faith and credit of
the participating municipalities subject to certain limitations. On June 30, 2010, outstanding bonds of
ecomaine totaled $9,210,000 of which the Town of Cumberland’s share, based on estimated tonnage to be
delivered, amounted to $324,134 (3.52%).

The Town has also entered into an agreement with ecomaine as one of twenty-seven other municipalities to
establish a material recycling facility. At June 30, 2010, outstanding material recycling facility bonds of
ecomaine totaled $1,980,000 of which the Town of Cumberland's share, based on tonnage to be delivered,
amounts to $45,144 (2.28%).
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

OVERLAPPING DEBT AND OTHER CONTINGENCIES, CONTINUED

Additionally, ecomaine operates a licensed balefill and ashfill site for which projected landfill closure and post
closure costs approximate $14,834,132 at June 30, 2009 (the most recent information available}. The Town’s
proportionate share of these estimated landfill closure and post closure costs is $523,121 or 3.53%.

Total Debt and Contingencies
June 30, 2010

Direct debt
Governmental Governmental Business-type Overlapping  Contingent Total
Unit activities activities debt debt debt

Town of Cumberland $17,835,201 - 1,178,009 - - 19,013,210
Cumberland County - - 20,208 - 20,208
M.S.AD. #51 - - 24,972,915 - 24,972,915
Portland Water District:

Water debt - - - 1,446,345 1,446,345
ecomaine:

Resource recovery system - - - 324,134 324,134

Materials recovery facility - - - 45,144 45,144

Totals $17,835,201 1,178,009 24,993,123 1,815,623 45,821,956

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town either carries commercial insurance or participates in
public entity risk pools. Currently, the Town participates in a public entity poot for workers’ compensation
sponsored by the Maine Municipal Association (MMA) in which participants in the pool share risk in proportion to
their contributions.

If the assets of either the MMA Property and Casualty Pool or the Worker's Compensation Pool are at any time
actuarially determined 1o be insufficient to enable either pool to discharge its legal liability and other obligations
and to maintain actuarially sound reserves, either pool has the power to make up the deficiency by the levy of a
prorated assessment upon its members for the amount needed to make up the deficiency. There has been no
such deficiency in the past three years. Management believes that no such deficiency exists at June 30, 2010.

Based on the coverage provided by this pool described above, as well as coverage provided by commercial
insurance purchased, the Town is not aware of any material actual or potential claim liabilities which should be
recorded at June 30, 2010. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from that of the prior year.,
Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage for any of the past three fiscal years. The amount of unpaid
claims was S0 at June 30, 2010.

LEASES

Operating Leases

The Town has one non-cancelable lease purchase agreement for the rental of a Town-owned building to MSAD
#51. This lease agreement expires March 31, 2014. If MSAD #51 is not in default of the performance of its
obligations under the lease purchase agreement on March 31, 2013, the Town shall convey the property to lessee
by a quitclaim deed without additional consideration.

57



TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

LEASES, CONTINUED

Rental income from operating leases for the year ended June 30, 2010 was $182,241, The Town’s investment in
property held for lease for the year ended June 30, 2010 was 51,810,383, with accumulated depreciation of
$558,201.

The following is a schedule by years of minimum future rental income on non-cancelable leases at June 30, 2010:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2011 S 182,241
2012 182,241
2013 182,241
Total $.546,723

Business-type Activities

Val Halla currently has a lease for the rental of 40 golf carts. This operating lease agreement expires in October
2011. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments at June 30, 2010:

Fiscal year ending June 30, 2010

2011 S 28,920
2012 19,280
Total S 48,200

Capital Leases

The Town has entered into lease agreements as lessee to finance the acquisition of a street sweeper, office
equipment, and lawn mowers for the golf course. These leases qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes
and therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of their
inception. The value of assets capitalized under these leases as of June 30, 2010 was:

Governmental
Activities
Street sweeper S 94,500
Wheel loader 77,500
Totals 172,000
Business-type
Activities
Lawn mowers 5149,225
Totals S 149,225
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

LEASES, CONTINUED

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments required under these capital leases and the present
value of the net minimum [ease payments at June 30, 2010:

Fiscal year
ending Governmental Business-type
June 30, activities activities
2011 S 35,315 33,400
2012 35,314 33,400
2013 14,546 -
2014 14,546 -
2015 14,544 -
Total minimum lease payments 114,265 66,800
Less: amount representing interest 12,665 4,566
Present value of future minimum lease payments 5% 101,600 62,234

OTHER COMMITMENTS

As of June 30, 2010, the Town of Cumberland has entered into various construction contracts for on-going
projects, including the Range Road reconstruction, the Route 88 construction, the Route 100 sewer line
improvements, and various road improvements. The commitments are contingent on the contractors meeting the
terms of the contracts and are payable based on ceriain stages of completion.

MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (MainePERS)

Maine PERS - Consolidated Plan

Description of the Plan - The Town contributes to the Maine Public Employees Retirement System Consolidated
Plan, a cost sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system established by the Maine State
legislature. The Maine Public Employees Retirement System provides retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions rests with the State legislature. The Maine Public Employees Retirement System issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
the Consolidated Plan. That report may be obtained by writing to Maine Public Employees Retirement System, 46
State House Station, Augusta, Maine 04333-0046 or by calling 1-800-451-9800.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 6.5% of their annual covered salary and the Town of
Cumberland is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 4% of annual covered
payroll. The contribution rates of plan members and the Town of Cumberland are established and may be
amended by the Maine Public Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees. The Town’s contributions to the
Maine Public Employees Retirement System Consclidated Plan for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008
was $43,688 (4% of covered wages), $34,994 and $21,198, respectively, which is equal to the required
contributions for each year, net of credit for the Initial Unpooled Unfunded Actuarial Asset of $319,566 for 2010.

Related Party Investments - During the year ended June 30, 2010, Maine PERS had no securities issued by the
Town or other related party.
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OTHER RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS

Additionally, the Town participates in the Social Security Retirement Program. The Town contributed $247,729
including F.1.C.A. and Medicare to the Social Security Retirement Program on behalf of Town employees for the
year ended June 30, 2010.

457 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Town offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue (IRC)
Section 457. The plan permits participating employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency. The Town matches employee contributions up to 7% of annual compensation, except for the Police
Department, which receives up to an 8% maich.

The Town amended the plan in accordance with the provisions of IRS Section 457(g). Assets of the plan were
placed in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. The requirements of that IRS
Section prescribes that the Town no longer owns the amounts deferred by employees, including the related
income on those amounts. Accordingly, the assets and the liability for the compensation deferred by plan
participants, including earnings on their plan assets, were removed from the Town’s financial statements.

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT

Under Maine law, the Town has established five Tax Increment Financing Districts (TIFs) to finance development
programs located in the Town of Cumberland.

These development programs will levy incremental tax upon the districts' so-called "captured assessed value". The
tax increment is remitted to the District over the life of the TIF District to assist in financing the development

projects.

The status of the active Tax Increment Financing Districts is summarized below.

Original Captured Taxes
Assessment Assessed Remitted
TIF District (capital projects funds) Value Value to Districts
Route One Narth S 355,600 39,519,100 575,003
Route One South District 2 339,400 9,860,600 143,472
Route One South District 3 966,400 576,000 8,381
Route 100 District 4 5,867,800 3,813,300 55,484
Route 100 District 5 2,866,400 3,489,000 50,765
Taxable Personal Property
in TIF Districts 91,000 1,371,900 19,961
Total $ 10,486,000 58,629,900 853,066
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. All general tax revenues and other receipts that
are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund. The fund
pays general operating expenditures, fixed charges, and capital improvement costs which are not paid through
other funds.
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Comparative Balance Sheets - General Fund
June 30, 2010 and 2009

Exhibit A-1

2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents S 5,254,680 4,184,770
Receivables:
Accounts 53,610 113,120
intergovernmental 39,407 47,809
Taxes receivable - prior years 58,195 31,041
Taxes receivable - current year 271,605 312,294
Tax liens 146,227 111,551
Prepaid items - 19,228
Total assets S 5,863,724 4,819,813
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 133,083 44,923
Escrow accounts 2,468 387
Accrued payroll 100,852 95,744
Taxes paid in advance 41,420 25,581
Deferred tax revenues 174,328 174,328
Interfund foans payable 3,411,767 2,483,574
Total liabilities 3,863,918 2,825,037
Fund balance:
Reserved for long-term interfund payables - 1,280,000
Unreserved:
Unreserved, undesignated 1,999,806 714,776
Total fund balance 1,999,806 1,994,776
Totai liabilities and fund balance 3 5,863,724 4,819,813
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended fune 30, 2010

(With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2009)

Exhibit A-2

2010
Variance
positive 2009
Budget Actual (negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes S 15,759,205 15,759,205 - 15,102,775
Supplemental taxes 5,805 - (5,805) -
Outer island property taxes 40,000 38,736 {1,264) 38,890
Excise taxes 1,306,000 1,372,271 66,271 1,348,642
Interest and lien costs 30,000 56,098 26,098 50,988
Total taxes 17,141,010 17,226,310 85,300 16,541,295
Licenses and permiis:
Town clerk fees 12,680 14,488 1,808 13,518
Clerk licenses 1,200 425 {775) 1,115
Snowmohile registration 1,500 1,997 497 2,203
Solid waste permits 200 150 (50) -
Police issued permits 3,500 2,703 (797) 3,972
Registration fees 20,300 21,389 1,089 20,891
Building permits 35,000 38,492 3,492 29,631
Electrical permits 12,000 10,315 (1,685) 9,026
Plumbing permits 3,000 9,393 1,393 5,610
Other permits 5,000 1,390 (3,610} 1,425
Application fees 500 900 400 700
Total licenses and permits 99,880 101,642 1,762 88,051
Intergovernmental:
State Revenue Sharing 650,000 566,153 {83,847) 702,294
Homaestead reimbursement 158,508 181,958 23,450 161,847
BETE reimbursement 3,660 3,688 28 -
Park fee sharing - 7,080 7,080 6,308
D.O.T. block grant 80,000 81,672 1,672 81,672
Windham firefrescue 3,900 1,950 {1,950) 3,900
Town of North Yarmouth 143,029 145,404 2,375 146,741
Other state aid 12,000 - {12,000} 11,300
Totlal intergovernmental 1,051,097 987,905 (63,192) 1,114,062
Charges for services:
Recreation programs 385,415 394,246 8,831 393,970
Rescue hillings 150,000 151,336 1,336 162,241
Regional rescue 2,000 2,100 100 150,179
Regional assessing 17,200 22,546 5,346 15,641
Universal waste 245,000 222,240 (22,760} 215,050
Recycling 10,500 14,029 3,528 1,478
Brush passes - 2,658 2,658 -
Library income 3,000 7,852 4,852 4,363
Staff review fee 500 2,900 2,400 2,250
Total charges for services 813,615 819,907 6,292 728,644
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund, Continued

Exhibit A-2, Cont.

2010
Variance
positive 2009
Budget Actual {negative) Actual
Revenues, continued:
Other;
Sale of asseis - 10,615 10,615 91,387
Interest revenue 100,000 16,342 (83,658) 71,519
Impact fees 70,000 40,403 (29,597) 38,985
Growth permits 750 1,200 450 1,100
Board of Appeals 500 300 (200) 300
Police revenues 56,600 50,958 (5,642) 39,454
Cable TV 103,000 107,594 4,594 101,954
Mooring fees 600 1,145 545 1,030
Circuit breaker program - 10,000 10,000 10,000
Building rentals 2,000 1,100 {900) 825
Miscellaneous 150,862 83,813 {67,049) 98,979
Total other 484,312 323,470 (160,842) 633,076
Total revenues 19,589,914 19,459,234 (130,680) 19,105,168
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Administration 423,849 459,790 (35,941) 453,426
Assessor 80,533 92,675 (12,142) 106,770
Treasurer and tax collector 277,041 277,743 (702) 311,014
Technaology 143,756 141,963 1,793 158,846
Legal services 40,000 59,331 {19,231} 46,026
Total general government 965,179 1,031,502 {66,323) 1,076,082
Public safety:
Police 993,481 1,054,539. (61,058) 993,398
Fire 719,677 762,593 (42,916) 413,252
Rescue - - - 554,793
Code Enforcement 85,000 132,807 (47,807) 73,238
Total public safety 1,798,158 1,949,939 (151,781) 1,992,024
Public works 867,985 866,539 1,446 895,922
Mealth, sanitation, and welfare:
Waste disposal 752,990 754,605 (1,615) 764,443
General assistance 19,347 39,366 (20,019) 18,932
Circuit breaker assistance - 53,374 (53,374) 44,782
Health services 9,027 3,730 297 4,899
Total health, sanitation, and welfare 781,364 856,075 (74,711) 833,056
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund, Continued

2010
Variance
positive 2009
Budget Actual {negative) Actual
Expenditures, continued:
Current, continued:
Recreation programs , S 459,334 498,365 (39,061} 482,173
Education and libraries:
Prince Memoriat Library 372,533 377,582 {5,048) 375,142
MSAD #51 10,913,899 10,913,899 - 10,350,263
Total education and libraries 11,286,432 11,291,481 (5,049) 10,725,405
County fax 615,032 615,032 - 588,870
Unclassified:
West Cumberland recreation building 8,100 8,889 (789) 7,238
Parks 168,581 184,382 (15,801) 192,157
Elections 20,312 18,135 2,177 23,944
Planning Board 90,709 78,841 11,868 82,605
Conservation Commission 3,000 1,582 1,418 3,500
Cemetery Association 25,000 25,180 (180) 25,872
Insurance 233,175 279,162 (45,987) 256,953
Fire hydrant charges 55,000 52,975 2,025 51,544
Street lighting 30,000 33,965 (3,965) 32,838
Contingencies 54,500 44,526 9,974 4,259
Municipal building maintenance 157,276 163,146 (5,870) 100,558
Fuel - 6,264 (6,264) 9,568
Abatements 20,000 13,840 6,160 18,350
Overlay 678,177 - 678,177 -
Total unclassified 1,543,830 910,887 632,943 852,043
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund, Continued

Exhibit A-2, Cont.

2010
Variance
positive 2009
Budget Actual {negative) Actual
Expenditures, continued:
Debt service:
Principal 353,066 359,066 - 365,933
Interest 217,776 218,037 (261) 221,500
TAN Interast 75,000 12,411 62,589 73,158
Total debt service 651,842 589,514 62,328 660,591
Total expenditures 18,969,156 18,609,364 359,792 18,106,166
Excess of revenues over
expenditures 620,758 849,870 229,112 999,002
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer to Special Revenue Funds - (7,337) (7,337) (22,000}
Transfer from Special Revenue Funds - - - 12,065
Transfer from Capital Projects - - - 19,664
Transfer to Capital Projects (620,758} {837,503) (216,745) (729,908)
Total other financing uses (620,758) {844,840) (224,082) (681,194)
Net change in fund balance - 5,030 5,030 317,808
Fund balance, heginning of year 1,994,776 1,676,968
Fund balance, end of year 1,999,806 1,894,776




" This page left blank intentionally.




ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Combining Balance Sheet
All Other Governmental Funds

Exhibit B-1

June 30, 2010
Special Capital Total Other
Revenue Projects Permanent Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Investmentis - - 261,797 261,797
Accounts receivable 20 - - 20
Intergovernmental - 109,811 - 109,811
Interfund Joans receivable 86,3209 336,253 230 422,792
Total assets 86,329 446,064 262,027 794,420
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liakilities:
Security deposits - 725 - 725
Accounts payable 21,691 18,478 430 40,599
Accrued payroll 806 - - 806
Interfund foans payable 11,602 410,517 - 422,119
Total liabilities 34,099 429,720 430 464,249
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Expendable trust - - 162,356 162,356
Principal - - 99,241 99,241
Unreserved, undesignated 52,230 16,344 - 68,574
Total fund balances 52,230 16,344 261,597 330,171
Total liabilities and fund balances 86,329 446,064 262,027 794,420
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TOWN OF CUMIBERLAND, MAINE

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

All Other Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit B-2

Special Capital Total Other
Revenue Projects Permanent Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
Revenues:
Tax revenue - 853,066 - 853,066
Rental income - 182,241 - 182,241
Recreation and education fees 130,676 - - 130,676
Intergovernmental 21,523 - - 21,523
Other revenue 33,058 170,238 - 203,296
Interest revenue - - 12,705 12,705
Total revenues 185,257 1,205,545 12,705 1,403,507
Expenditures:
Current:
Program expenditures 208,821 - 2,575 211,396
Other expenditures - 252,790 - 252,790
Capital expenditures - 719,152 - 719,152
Debt service:
Principal - 437,997 - 437,997
Interest - 385,444 - 385,444
Total expenditures 208,821 1,795,383 2,575 2,006,779
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures (23,564) {589,838) 10,130 (603,272}
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from other funds 7,337 839,933 - 847,270
Transfer to other funds (2,430) {7,702) - (10,132)
Total other financing sources 4,907 832,231 - 837,138
MNet change in fund balances (18,657) 242,393 10,130 233,866
Fund balances {deficit), beginning of year 70,887 (226,049) 251,467 96,305
Fund balances, end of year 52,230 16,344 261,597 320,171
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NONMAIJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for resources obtained and expended for specified purposes
that are restricted by law or administrative action.

Special Revenue Funds have been established for the following purposes:
Rescue Fund - To account for rescue grant funds received.
Unemployment Fund - To account for reserves set aside for unemployment claims.
Fire Grant Fund - To account for fire grant funds received.
Recreation Programs Fund - To account for self supporting recreation programs.
Seacoast Fund - To account for revenues and expenditures related to seacoast activities.

Backyard Composting Bins Fund - To account for revenues and expenditures related to the sale of
composting bins.

Police Fund - To account for police grant funds received.
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NONMAIJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Capital Project Funds are established to account for resources abtained and expended for the acquisition of
major capital facilities other than those employed in the delivery of services accounted for in Enterprise Funds.
The funds were established for the following purposes:

Town Building Reserves - To account for funds used to make improvements to the Town Office.

Affordable Housing Fund - To account for all activity related to the financing and development of Small's
Brook Crossing.

Land Acquisition Fund - To account for funds set aside for the purchase of land.

School Renovations Fund - To account for funds used to renovate the old Town Office for lease to the
School District.

Road improvements Fund - To account for various road improvement projects.
Parking Lot Fund - To account for funds related to the Town’s parking iot.

TIF Funds - To account for the activity in the five Tax Increment Financing Districts located in the Town.

Other Town Capital Projects:
Sweetser Books - To account for funds used to purchase new books.
Comprehensive Plan - To account for funds set aside to implement the Town's comprehensive plan.

Seized Funds - To account for expenses for an officer for working for DEA and the Town’s share of
money seized during drug busts.

Library Building Fund - To account for funds used to make improvements to the library.
Tennis Court Fund - To account for funds used to reconstruct the tennis courts.

Route 1 Parking Lot Fund - To account for funds used for the Route 1 parking lot.

Library Publications Fund —~ To account for expenses related to library publications.
Equipment Reserves Fund - Reserve fund for the purchases of miscellaneous equipment.

Environmental Reserve Fund-To account for funds used to make environmental improvements.
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NONMAIJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

PERMANENT FUNDS

Permanent Funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not
principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs.

Prince Fund - To support Greely High School. It is applied to MSAD #51 annual assessments.
Cumberland School Fund - To support the schools. 1t is applied to MSAD #51's annual assessment.
Paul Merrill Fund - To be used to support the Library.

Sweetser Fund - To be used to purchase non-fiction books for the Library.

Historical Society Fund - To maintain and support the Cumberland Historical Society.
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Permanent Funds

Exhibit E-1

June 30, 2010
Cumberland Paul Historical
Prince School Merrill Sweetser Society
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Investmenis S 49,339 50,976 68,905 42,572 50,005 261,797
Interfund loans receivable 11 - - - 219 230
Total assets 49,350 50,976 68,905 42,572 50,224 262,027
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable - - - - 430 430
Total liabilities - - - - 430 430
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Expendable trust 47,185 48,751 12,718 7,858 45,844 162,356
Principal 2,165 2,225 56,187 34,714 3,950 899,241
Total fund balances 49,350 50,976 68,905 42,572 49,794 261,597
Total liabilities and
and fund balances § 49,350 50,976 68,905 42,572 50,224 262,027
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Permanent Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit E-2

Cumberland Paul Historical
Prince School Merrill Sweetser Society
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
Revenues:
Investment income S 2,428 2,508 3,341 2,064 2,364 12,705
Total revenues 2,428 2,508 3,341 2,064 2,364 12,705
Expenditures:
Current:
Cther miscellaneous - - - - 2,575 2,575
Total expenditures - - - - 2,575 2,575
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 2,428 2,508 3,341 2,064 {211} 10,130
Net change in fund balances 2,428 2,508 3,341 2,064 (211) 10,130
Fund balances, beginning of year 46,922 48,468 65,564 40,508 50,005 251,467
Fund balances, end of year S 49,350 50,976 68,505 42,572 49,794 261,597
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS-

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Town of Cumberland, Maine’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,
and required supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial health.

Contents Tables

Financial Trends 1-4

These schedules contoin trend information to help the reader understand
how the Town'’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 5-5

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Town’s most
significant local revenue source; property tax.

Debt Capacity 10-13
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the Town’s current levels of outstanding debt and the Town’s ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 14-15

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the Town's financiof activities
take place.

Operating Information 16-19
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader

understand how the information in the government’s financial report relates
to the services the government provides and the activities it performs.
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TOWRN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Changes in Net Assets
Last Eight Fiscal Years
{accrual basis of accounting_)

Tahfe 2

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2005 2007 2008 2009 2010
Expanses
Governmental activities:
General government () 3 833,186 878,117 915,854 5,882,021 5,158,324 5,505,136 3,783,966 3,285,510
Public safety 1,572,618 1,608,423 1,610,805 1,810,869 2,012,200 2,317,211 2,220,293 2,120,317
Public works 1,057,397 887,227 1,093,478 1,206,824 1,249,056 1,463,427 1,152,830 1,208,065
Health, sanitation and welfara 692,360 776,588 853,453 1,022,329 935,715 758,204 834,347 857,366
Recreation 661,559 513,071 452,277 562,991 565,385 569,328 585,531 650,799
Education and libraries 10,894,174 11,657,988 12,722,701 12,283,626 12,717,167 11,361,373 10,801,875 11,368,432
Unclassified 668,831 1,118,845 1,701,315 - - - - -
County tax 552,220 591,046 629,488 - - - - -
Interest on debt 204,343 192,279 394,004 310,337 502,022 531,842 562,089 548,993
Capital maintenance expenses 1,637,238 56,003 - - - - - .
Total governmental activities expenses 18,773,926 18,279,590 20,377,375 23,078,997 23,140,879 22,536,521 - 15,960,931 20,139,282
Business-type activities:
Senior Housing 288,515 265,258 243,119 234,742 236,583 233,686 244,717 270,422
Sewer System 517,521 583,851 615,014 726,525 814,256 858,224 913,642 831,988
Val Halla Golf and Recreation Center 826,454 849,287 829,971 058,763 1,212,925 1,086,274 859,546 788,826
Total business-type activities expenses 1,632,490 1,668,496 1,688,104 1,960,030 2,263,764 2,178,184 2,037,965 1,852,336
Total primary government expenses $ 20,405,415 19,978,686 22,065,479 25,039,027 25,404,643 24,714,705 - 21,978,896 22,031,618
Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General goverement 3 30,229 128,075 565,299 534,007 660,989 603,639 344,101 462,566
Public safety 155,760 115,761 248,303 26%,097 323,404 299,296 355,846 207,097
Public works - - 2,065 805 1,849 2,679 1,478 16,687
Health, sanitation and welfare 8,097 13,030 20,805 23,171 260,593 234,789 215,050 222,240
Recreation 404,557 258,167 285,157 345,274 350,890 423,781 393,570 394,246
Education and libraries 11,298 10,58% 9,102 10,168 11,474 3,931 4,363 7,852
Unclassified 48,566 260,339 285,791 - - - - -
Interest on debt - 182,241 182,241 182,241 182,965 182,240 182,241 182,241
Capital maintenance expenses 570,942 560,884 - - - - - -
Operating grants and contributions 428,402 411,275 273,354 269,683 281,157 235,807 351,020 257,629
Capital grants and contributions 903,062 - - 2,891,172 2,276,730 279,136 398,369 170,238
Total governmentaf activities program revenues 2,561,553 1,849,371 1,882,020 4,547,708 4,350,051 2,263,298 - 2,246,438 1,920,796
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Senior Housing S 237,414 237,319 247,023 253,572 266,665 274,864 277,502 282,165
Sewer System 386,960 425,277 541,558 593,317 667,031 720,257 952,992 831,242
Val Halla Golf and Recreation Center 765,606 725,675 681,824 844,762 917,320 832,536 594,030 541,318
Cepital grants and contributions 100,318 - - 86,721 - - - 59,789
Total Husiness-type activities program revenues 1,490,295 1,388,271 1,470,405 1,778,372 1,85%,014 1,827,657 1,864,524 1,715,114
Total primary government program revenues & 4,651,348 3,337,642 3,352,425 3,352,425 6,201,067 4,090,955 - 4,110,962 3,635,910
Net (expense)/revenue
Governmentaf activities $  (16,212,373) (16,330,219) (18,495,355} (18,531,289} {18,790,828} [20,273,223) [17,714,483) (18,218,286)
Business-type activities (142,155) (310,225) (217,699) (181,658) {412,748) (350,527) (153,441} (177,222)
Total primary government net expense 5 {16,354,568) (16,640,444} {18,713,054) (18,712,947) {19,203,576) {20,623,759} - {17,867,934} {18,395,708)

{1) Certain expenditures that were classified separately in prior years have been classified as general government, starting in 2006,

Mote: Only eight years have been presented since 2003 was the year GASB Statement No. 34 was implemented.
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TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE

Changes In Net Assets
tast Eight Fiscal Years

{accrual basis of accounting)

Table 2, Cont.

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2005 2007 2008 2009 2010
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:
Taxes:
Property taxes $ 13,811,333 14,846,060 16,246,609 16,218,425 16,648,065 15,146,730 15,153,763 15,815,303
TIF District taxes - - - - - 659,342 798,778 853,066
Exclse taxes 1,423,565 1,445,790 1,439,557 1,503,116 1,480,483 1,416,261 1,348,642 1,372,271
Quter island property taxes - - - - - 39,609 38,890 38,736
Count tax refund - - - - - 60,667 - -
Payment in lfeu of taxes 17,000 17,000 17,000 - - - - -
Fees 81,924 83,124 87,295 92,461 - - - -
Unrestricted grants and contributions 836,542 808,117 833,516 566,041 826,289 917,139 875,441 751,799
Investment earnings 26,117 17,520 47,841 129,940 270,487 144,254 71,519 16,342
Miscellaneous 45,049 24,441 168,451 60,824 53,883 84,897 195,382 95,534
Transfers 13,000 - 80,720 - 21,391 {400,820} (934,991} {7,702)
Total governmenial activities 16,255,538 17,242,052 18,921,049 18,910,807 19,340,598 18,668,070 17,547,424 18,936,749
Business-type activities:
Investment earnings - - - 129,940 - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - - - - 433,582 -
Transfers (13,060) - {80,720) - (21,381) 400,829 834,991 7,702
Taotal business-typa activities {13,000} - {80,720) 129,940 £21,391) 400,829 1,368,573 7,702
Total primary government $ 16,242,530 37,242,052 18,540,329 15,040,747 19,319,207 18,468,899 18,915,997 18,944,451
Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities 43,157 911,833 425,594 379,518 548,770 {2,205,153) (167,069} 718,263
Business-fype activities (155,135} (310,225) {798,419) {51,718) (434,139) 50,302 1,215,132 {169,520)
Special items:
Chebeague settlement - - - - - 1,300,002 - -
Total primary government s {112,038} 601,608 127,275 327,800 115,631 {854,85%) 1,048,063 548,743

Note: Only efght years have been presentad since 2003 was the year GASB Statement No. 34 was implemanted.

Note: tn 2007, the TIF alfocation was netted against property tax revenue,
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Table 5

TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(dollar amounis expressed in thousands)

Fiscal Real Personal Excise

Year estate property fax Total
2001 S 11,327 116 1,204 12,647
2002 12,492 163 1,308 13,963
2003 13,703 137 1,424 15,264
2004 14,718 146 1,446 16,310
2005 16,099 160 1,440 17,699
2006 16,010 159 1,503 17,672
2007 16,974 185 1,480 18,639
20038 15,563 199 1,416 17,178
2009 15,750 152 1,349 17,251
2010 16,457 155 1,372 17,984

Note: The table does not inciude outer island taxes or interest and costs
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Table 7

TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Town Direct and Overlapping Rates

Direct Overlapping

Town Education County
Fiscal year rate* rate rate Total
2001 4.58 16.35 0.87 21.80
2002 4.32 18.02 0.86 23.20
2003 (2) 3.43 13.03 0.69 17.15
2004 3.61 13.70 0.72 18.03
2005 3.84 14.59 0.77 19.20
2006 4.32 13.73 0.75 18.80
2007 4.46 14.17 0.77 19.40
2008 4,78 14.13 0.89 19.80
2009 {2) 3.96 9.50 0.54 14.00
2010 4.01 9.98 0.56 14.55

* Tax rates are hased upon $1,000 of assessed value
SOURCE: Cumberland assessor's office

(2) Revaluation
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Table 11

TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollar amounts expressed in thousands)

Percentage of

General Estimated Actual

Fiscal Obligation Taxable Value Per

Year Bonds of Property Capita
2001 S 3,192 0.59% 446
2002 3,897 0.66% 558
2003 3,766 0.57% 526
2004 4,152 0.54% 580
2005 3,907 0.44% 546
2006 8,240 0.78% 1,151
2007 7,709 0.65% 1,077
2008 9,974 0.78% 1,383
2009 13,705 1.21% 1,914
2010 17,091 1.47% 2,241

Note: Details regarding the Town's cutstanding debt can be found in the notes
to the financial statements.
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TOWN OF CUMBERLANE, MAINE
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Table 12

June 30, 2018
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping

Governmental Unit Ouistanding Applicable Debt
Cverlapping debt:

Cumberland County 3,772,625 0.54% 20,208

MSAD #51 34,844,307 71.67% 24,972,915
Subtotal, averlapping debt 24,993,123
Direct debt:

Bonds payable 17,090,601 17,090,601

Notes payable 744,600 744,600

Capital leases 101,600 101,600
Subtotal, direct debt 17,936,801
Tota! direct and overlapping debt 42,929,924
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Table 15

TOWN OF CUMBERLAND, MAINE
Principal Employers

June 30, 2010
2010
Percentage of
Total Town

Emplover Employees Rank Employment
Cumbertand Farmers Club 100-249 1 2.5%-6.3%
Greely Middle School 100-249 2 2.5%-6.3%
Cumbertand Fire Department 50-99 3 2.5%-6.3%
Town of Cumberland 50-99 3 1.3%-2.5%
Seafax 50-99 5 1.3%-2.5%
Greely High School 50-99 6 1.3%-2.5%
Mabel Wilson School 50-99 7 1.3%-2.5%
Norton Insurance 50-99 8 1.3%-2.5%
Sevee Maher Engineers 20-49 9 5%-1.3%
Main Line Fence Co. 20-49 i0 5%-1.3%

Note: The information on the principal employers from nine years ago is not available.

106




LOT

"SIUSWN3OP 198PNQ PUBHSYWND JO UMO], 182IN0S

+00z €1 Jond payoeJ3 jou a1em wedSosd/uoiouny Aq sasA0|dwa JUaWLIBA0E umo] (1)

67 4 s 95 gs is €0 viN v/N /N saahojdwiz awinl-[ing je10L
0 - - - - - T v/N v/N v/N loguey
3 € S 9 g t 1 v/N V/N V/N SIETLE
8 6 L L L L 9 v/N v/N v/N Ateigr pue a3y ‘sded
6 01 (4" €T €T €T €T v/N Y/N v/N SMOM DN
0 £ € € € T T ¥/N V/N v/N anasay
1 [ [4) 4" (4" LT 1T V/N v/N /N tjod
17 z Z [4 4 4 T /N v/N V/N CITR

:A13JeG gnd
- - - - - - T v/N v/N v/N guiuue|d/sspa)
) T T T 1 T T v/N v/N v/N Buissassy
4 z z Z z 4 z v/N v/N v/N Sutuueld
JA L L L L L 6 ¥/N ¥/N viN UOIBJISIUILIPY /a0uBUl]
3 € € € € ¢ g€ /N v/N v/N SIENEY: LI
JJUBLWILLIBAQD [BIDUID
0102 6002 200¢ £002 9002 5002 $00T £00¢ 7002 1002
ABTA [eIsid

91 9jqel

5iE20) |BJSid Us) 1521

wesdoud fuoipundg Aq sooAojdiug JUSWILIBACY UMO] JusieAinba-awll-ling

INIVIA ‘ANVYTHIZAIND 40 NMOL



80T

OUISIQ JSIBM PUBILOJ ‘S1USWiedaq ali] PUB ‘90104 ‘QUSIISII0MT 9P07) PUBMSGUWIND JO UMOL :$32N0S

000202 €0716T 096241 0S6°ZLT 096°2LT aqe|leasun  S{gejiEABUN 3|qe)ieasln 3|qe|ieAeln 9[qefieABUN
020t #10°T 596 596 696 Sge|leARUN  HCE([RARUN o|dejieABln 21qejieAsun F|qB{EAEUN
A AR 97601 ZE80 ZE8'9 Ts'L €59°0T 1696 166'6 Z89'0T beY'TT
e 89 L9T L971 £9T IJqejleasUn  I{qE[[BABUN s|gejieABUN ||qejieasun D[qE{iBARUN
S8YE S0 689y S85'Y oo 3[qe|leAzun  S{qe|[leABUN algejieAeln S|gefieAsUn g|qejieaBUn
LET 84T 6¥T 671 6¥T 2qz|leAzUn  S{qe{iPARUN I|qejleABUN o|dejieaeun B|qE{lEABUN
LEE TT¢ 19T 91 19T S|qejleasUn  I[qE|[BABUN SIqrIiRARUN 2|qe|[eARUN B[qE(lEARBUN
[434 9g8 0TS §LS 44 qts €8t 789 65 T0S
4 9 8 8 L [4 € S 6 a1
18T 80¢ €8¢ £8¢ §L¢ 80¢€ 0TE 8/¢ 414 EIE

6002 800¢ 002 2002 S00¢ 700< €002 €00T 1002 0002

123, Jepualed

suo|es ul uawiesty adesaae Ajleg
SUOI123UU0J S0IAISS JO JAQUWINN
1WDISAG DERIDMDS

B2IALDS J0J SI[ED JO JOgUINN
suone|olA suppied
SUO[IR|OIA D41 |,
159y
'SUOIIBOIA ME] 4O JBGWNN
U03381044 99)|0d

P3IoNPUOD SUOIIDSdSUL JO RGN
pBJaMSUE 5[[BD JO JBLWNN
1U0[3993104d 3114

sywiad udig
sywasd Surpying
IUBLWR0LUT 3P0D
Uoaund

LT @|qel

SIEap Jepue]e) us] ise]
uoiaund Ag siozenipul Sunesadp
INIVINL ‘ONYTHIFINND 40 NMOL



60T

"1014351q JB1B A PUE[LIO {Sjusuliedag 814 pue ‘8d1j0d ‘IUaLadlolus ap0]) PUBHSGUIND JO UMO] 1S30INCS

.nmeEm_QE_.mmB £ 9SYD B2A 3UL sem £007 25NRISG palussald ussg aazy sieak 1Sie Ao 310N

0z 74 07 16T 16T L'6T s[gE|leARUN 3|gejleasun s1amas AJBIIUES 10 SINIA
WET TS
T T T 1 T T s[ge)ieaeUn 3|gejleasun $35In02 }|08 21igng
t ¥ ¥ 7 ¥ b B[qEB|=ARLN 2[qe|lBABUN S1IN0D SIUUS) 21[ghd
T T T T T T B[gEliEARUN B|qe|leazuUn syui Sulieys oljgnd
0st 05z 052 052 052 052 algejjeABUn  ©|OE|IBARUN (sBeaune) syied
T T T T T T 3[geeARUN 2|qe|leaBUN $)iBg
IUONRERIIDY | e
£0T £0¢ €0t 155744 S¥z SrE a[gejieARUN 3|ge|leasun S1YEIFeRU15 JO Jaguiny
74 74 8/ 09 09 09 B|QBIEARUN [|ge|leazun (so)1W) s19a118
SHI0M 2|gNd
1T 7T £T T LT /1 B|gejleaBUn &|ge|ieaeun SO|MUSA
Vd z zZ £ g ¢ a|gejleABUn B|ge|leaLUn SUDIIE]S
a1
ST LT 6T ¥Z 0T oz a|gejleneun  S|qE|IBARUN $32YBA
T 1 T Z T < |ge[IBABUN 3[gejleARUN SUOjElS
132)10d
:A¥3)ES 21|1gNd
uoouny
0T07 5002 800% £00T 5002 5002 Y00E £007
B3N _mummu_

SJeaA [easyd W31y 35e
uolIuNg A 5213513835 1855 [endes
INIVIAL ‘ANYTHIFNND S0 NAOL

8T 9|qeL




TOWN OF CUMIBERLAND, MAINE
Miscellaneous Statistics
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Table 19

Date of incorporation

Form of government

Number of fuil-time employees
All employees

Area in square miles

Name of government facilities and services:
Miles of streets
Number of street lights
Culture and recreation:
Parks
Park acreage
Skating rinks
Tennis courts
Golf course
Fire Protection:
Number of fire personnel and officers
Police Protection:
Number of police personnel and officers
Number of patrol units
Education:
Number of elementary schools
Number of elementary school instructors
Number of secondary schools
Number of secondary school instructors

110

1821
Council/Manager
49
345

20

78
203

Y

250

SRR Y

85 {Volunteers)
11

5

82

125












